
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Community Safety, 
Environment and Residents 

Services Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 18 November 2015 
7.00 pm 

Small Hall - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Larry Culhane 
(Chair) 
Councillor Iain Cassidy 
Councillor Sharon Holder 
 

Councillor Charlie Dewhirst 
Councillor Steve Hamilton 
 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Ainsley Gilbert 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2088 
 E-mail: ainsley.gilbert@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 
 

Date Issued: 
 

10 November 2015 
 

 
 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Committee_reports_minutes_and_agendas/Current_Committees/Homepage.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Community Safety, Environment and 
Residents Services Policy and 

Accountability Committee 
Agenda 

 
18 November 2015 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES  1 - 6 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2015. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Committee member has any prejudicial or personal interest in a 
particular item they should declare the existence and nature of the 
interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or as 
soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a prejudicial interest may 
also make representations, give evidence or answer questions about 
the matter. The Councillor must then withdraw immediately from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote taken unless a 
dispensation has been obtained from the Standards Committee.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance, then 
the Councillor with a prejudicial interest should withdraw from the 
meeting whilst the matter is under consideration unless the disability has 
been removed by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 To invite questions from members of the public present.  
 
Members of the public with more complex issues are invited to submit 
their questions in advance in order to allow a more substantive answer 
to be given. Questions can be sent to the contact officer shown on the 
front page of the agenda.  
 

 

5.   BOROUGHWIDE 20MPH SPEED LIMIT - CONSULTATION RESULTS  7 - 19 

 This report presents the results from the borough wide consultation 
carried out during the summer 2015. 
 
 
 

 



6.   CYCLING UPDATE  20 - 29 

 This report gives what will be an annual update on developments in 
cycling in the borough. It covers the period since the report to PAC on 
the subject in February 2015. 
 

 

7.   REVISED STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY  30 - 93 

 This report explains the proposed changes to the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy. 
 

 

8.   COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT 2015-16  94 - 123 

 This report covers the 2015-16 Strategic Assessment which underpins 
the work of the Crime & Disorder Reduction Partnership. 
 

 

9.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS AND WORK PROGRAMMING  124 - 127 

 The Committee is asked to consider the Work Programme of future 
items. Dates of future meetings are: 

- 18 January 2016 
- 2 March 2016 
- 12 April 2016 
- 28 June 2016 
- 21 September 2016 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

. 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Community Safety, 
Environment and 

Residents Services 
Policy and 

Accountability 
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Monday 21 September 2015 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Larry Culhane (Chair), Iain Cassidy, 
Sharon Holder and Steve Hamilton 
 
Other Councillors: Councillors Sue Fennimore, Wesley Harcourt and Max Schmid  
 
Officers: Craig Bowdery (Scrutiny Manager), Elizabeth Fonseca (Environmental 
Quality Manager), Sue Harris (Director of Cleaner, Greener and Cultural Services), 
Kathy May (Head of Waste and Street Enforcement), Edward Stubbing (Transport 
Planner and Engineer) 
 

 
11. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2015 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
 

12. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Dewhirst.  
 
 

13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

14. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
The Chair invited members of the public present to make any comments in 
relation to issues on the agenda as part of that item. 
 
 

15. FUTURE WASTE AND STREET CLEANSING SERVICES – INVOLVING 
THE CITIZEN  
 
The Committee received a report from the Director for Cleaner, Greener & 
Cultural Services outlining the challenges to the Council caused by rubbish 
dumping and maintaining the street scene. Officers explained that the Council 
had focussed on the issue of flytipping for several months but despite the 
increased resources allocated, it remained a concern. The Council was 
therefore seeking to use a wider dialogue with the community to tackle it 
together and to develop ways of working with residents more positively. 
Enforcement through prosecutions had proven to be time-consuming and 
resource-intensive as clear evidence was needed to link dumped rubbish with 
the offender, which was often very difficult. As such, residents were invited to 
suggest ways in which the Council could work with them to improve the 
Borough’s streets.  
 
A member of the public present explained that he appreciated the time and 
effort put into the issue by the Council and had attended multiple site visits 
with officers. However the problems persisted with only a slight improvement: 
more bins had been installed, but they were still overflowing with people 
dumping their rubbish on the incorrect day. He also acknowledged the work 
by Serco to clear flytipping within 24 hours or being reported, but it was still 
occurring. He argued that the root of the problem was that in much of the 
Borough’s terraced housing there was insufficient space to store rubbish, 
which prompted people to dump their rubbish on the pavement and make the 
area look like a tip. He was particularly concerned in light of the anticipated 
further budget cuts to the service. He argued that more needed to be done to 
improve the infrastructure of properties to remove the incentive to dump on 
the streets. This was especially true of larger houses that had been adapted 
into Houses of Multiple Occupancy (HMOs), which increased the number of 
households and therefore rubbish produced. He suggested that as the worst 
offenders, there should be an additional levy applied to HMOs to fund the 
additional costs of maintaining tidy streets.  
 
Another member of the public expanded on the issues caused by HMOs and 
how the basements of such buildings were traditionally used for waste 
storage but this was no longer practical so rubbish was often left on steps and 
the pavement. New tenants moving into such properties were not instructed 
by their landlords of the required rubbish disposal procedures and so rubbish 
was left out incorrectly in leaking supermarket carrier bags that there often 
then attacked by foxes, creating more mess. Black rubbish sacks and 
recycling bags should be issued to new tenants at the landlords’ expense and 
property managers should be required to instruct new residents. He also 
described how at properties without sufficient storage space, additional 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

rubbish collections had been arranged. It was suggested that these could be 
increased, with the costs passed onto the landlords. 
 
Officers reported that they acknowledged the need for greater interaction with 
landlords. Work on this had begun, but it was agreed that this needed to be 
taken further. Officers also undertook to explore the feasibility of additional 
collections and how they might be funded.  
 
Members of the public also highlighted that many of the Borough’s residents 
did not speak English as their first language, and so it was suggested that all 
literature and signage needed to be very visual with clear pictures. It was also 
suggested that signs could be developed and put on the backs of doors of 
HMOs, so that even if the tenants changed, the signs would remain. 
Community skips that were in changing locations across the Borough were 
also suggested to enable people to dispose of rubbish and bulky items easily.  
 
It was agreed that signage with clear visual messaging should be developed 
and officers agreed to look into them. In terms of passing on costs to 
landlords, officers reported that the legal responsibility for waste disposal 
rested with individual residents and businesses, so getting landlords’ 
agreement could be difficult. Officers also described experiences of 
community skips in other areas, where they attracted large numbers of people 
from a wide area and some dumping of commercial waste, without having a 
significant impact on the wider street scene.  
 
The meeting discussed the role of planning in new builds and conversions 
and the range of requirements that needed to be met before planning 
permission was granted. Officers welcomed the suggestion and agreed to 
explore ways in which they could better work with colleagues in planning and 
whether there was any scope to extend requirements to more historical 
buildings. They also explained that there existed regulations regarding waste 
storage for high rise buildings and that there was a London-wide project to 
expand them to smaller developments.  
 
Members of the public also highlighted that many houses in the Borough were 
Council-owned and managed through social landlords. As such, the Council 
should be able to exert greater pressure to ensure residents complied with 
waste procedures correctly. The Cabinet Member also highlighted that some 
boroughs required compulsory registration for private landlords and that this 
could be explored in Hammersmith & Fulham to see if they could be made 
responsible for education of tenants or be subject to a levy for the cost of 
additional services. He also suggested that as a lot of on-street dumping 
seemed to come from house clearances, it would be productive to work more 
closely with local estate agents to prevent waste being left out on the wrong 
days.  
 
Members expressed the view that storing and disposing of waste needed to 
be made as simple as possible as people tended to do whatever was easiest. 
It would therefore be important to ensure information relating to collection 
days was easily available and understood. It was suggested that such 
information should be included in Council Tax bills throughout the year.  

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
A range of leaflets and stickers to be distributed by residents or affixed to 
instances of flytipping was also suggested. It was argued that if residents saw 
other residents highlighting the negative impacts of illegal dumping, then the 
message would be more powerful than if it only came from the Council. It was 
also highlighted that the term ‘flytipping’ itself was not always understood and 
shouldn’t be used in communication with residents.  
 
A member of the public argued that the ‘Keep Britain Tidy’ national campaign 
many years ago had been a powerful mechanism to limit littering and make 
people aware of their responsibilities. The campaign now needed to be 
refreshed to remind people, with particular attention paid to educating 
children. It was suggested that the Council should encourage more schools to 
visit the Western Riverside Waste Authority site to see the implications of not 
recycling properly. Officers welcomed this suggestions and explained that 
they were encouraging their colleagues from other authorities to re-adopt 
something similar to the ‘Keep Britain Tidy’ campaign.  
 
Officers highlighted the questions listed in appendix 1 of the report and asked 
residents to give their views on them by 10th October before the formal 
consultation was launched. It was agreed that an update on this item would 
be considered by the Committee in January.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the report and the proposed resident consultation be noted.  
 
 

16. AIR QUALITY  
 
The Committee received a report from the Environmental Quality Manager 
presenting the Council’s 2015 update on air quality in the Borough. Mr John 
Griffiths, Chair of hfcyclists, also presented a report on his group’s work to 
monitor air quality at a range of heights around Shepherds Bush Green and 
the Hammersmith Gyratory. The data from hfcyclists appeared to suggest that 
air quality levels were worse than at the locations measured in the Council 
report. Another finding from hycyclists was that NO2 levels were 30% higher 
at pushchair height.  
 
Officers explained that like other authorities, the Council was required to 
improve air quality to a defined level by 2030, but that predictions based on 
recent years suggested this would be extremely unlikely. Officers explained 
that this was an issue that would require action on a larger scale than a single 
borough, and so they continued to lobby the GLA and Government for more 
coordinated action. 
 
The Committee discussed how certain driving increased pollution, such as 
excessive braking and acceleration, and how road surfaces and the wear on 
tyres also played a part. There had been some initial work to quantify the 
impact of greener driving, but this was not yet finished. The Chair suggested 
that if the impact could be quantified, then it would be easier to persuade 
people to change their driving style. Officers explained that it was a significant 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

challenge as many people resented being told how to drive. However there 
was a potential opportunity with large Council contractors, for whom meeting 
green driving standards could be made a prerequisite for contract awards. 
Members also discussed the potential to design-out pollution with increased 
water features and foliage.  
 
The decision by TfL to not expand the Ultra Low Emission Zone to 
Hammersmith & Fulham was also discussed. It was felt that the case for 
including the Borough should be easy to make, but it was acknowledged that 
many other boroughs also wanted the Zone expanded. Regardless of 
designation, it was hoped that there would be a knock-on effect as buses and 
taxis travelling in and out of the Borough would have to meet the standards of 
the Zone.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the report be noted.  
 
 

17. PARKING TASK GROUP REPORT  
 
The Committee received a report from the Scrutiny Manager outlining the 
work of the Parking Task Group, which had been created following a meeting 
of the PAC where members of the pubic raised concerns regarding parking 
the Borough. It was agreed that the issues raised by the Task Group would 
not be resolved immediately and that an ongoing Parking Issues Board 
should be created to replace the Task Group and provide an ongoing 
member-level sounding board to inform the Council’s parking policies.  
 
Noting the Task Group’s discussions on facilitating cashless payments for 
parking and the use of smartphone applications, the Cabinet Member 
confirmed that the feedback had been taken on board and that a Cabinet 
decision to implement many of the suggestions was expected in October. 
Members of the Committee welcomed this and asked if a report could be 
prepared which detailed how the suggestions and comments put forward by 
the Task Group had been reflected in the final decisions taken. 
 

Action: Edward Stubbing  
 
RESOLVED 
That the Committee note the work of the Parking Task Group and 
recommend that the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport & Residents 
Services establish a Parking Issues Board to replace the work of the Parking 
Task Group.  
 
 

18. WORK PROGRAMMING  
 
Members requested that a report on the Borough’s cemeteries be considered 
by a future meeting, which identified the key challenges and priorities and 
recognised the recent awards won at the Margravine cemetery.  
 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

RESOLVED 
That the proposed work programme be agreed. 
 
 

19. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The dates of future meetings were agreed as follows:  

 18 November 2015 

 18 January 2016 

 2 March 2016 

 12 April 2016 
 
 

 
Meeting started: 7.00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.50 pm 

 
 

Chair   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Craig Bowdery 
Scrutiny Manager 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2278 
 E-mail: craig.bowdery@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

Page 6



 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND RESIDENTS’ 

SERVICES POLICY & ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

18 November 2015 
 

 

 
BOROUGHWIDE 20MPH SPEED LIMIT - CONSULTATION RESULTS 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services 
 

Open Report 
 

Classification - For Policy & Advisory Committee Review & Comment 
 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: ALL 
 

Accountable Director: Mahmood Siddiqi, Director for Transport & Highways 
 

Report Author: Slobodan Vuckovic,  Project 
Manager  
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 3360 
E-mail: slobodan.vuckovic@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
                                                                                                                                   
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1. A public consultation on the introduction of a borough-wide 20mph speed 
limit has shown a significant majority in favour of the scheme.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the committee review and comment on the outcome of the borough 
wide consultation on a 20mph speed limit as set out in section 5 this 
report.   

 
 

3. REASONS FOR THE PROPOSAL 

3.1. The Administration’s manifesto includes a commitment to ‘greening the 
borough, being fair to drivers and better for cycling’. The Administration 
has a firm commitment to making local neighbourhoods safer and more 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

mailto:slobodan.vuckovic@lbhf.gov.uk


 

pleasant for local people and this proposal is an important initiative in that 
improvement programme.  

 
3.2. The council, as part of its transport plan, has targets to reduce both the 

number of overall road casualties and reduce the number people killed 
and seriously injured in collisions.  

 
3.3. The proposal was put forward for the following reasons; 

 

 to address a real danger on our streets 

 to reduce deaths and injuries 

 to reduce accidents 

 to make our children, and others, healthier 

 to make our neighbourhoods more pleasant. 
 

The consultation document set out the following rationale for the proposal; 
 

 Three children a month are injured on H&F’s roads on average. 

 Of a total of 763 people injured last year, almost half were cyclists or 
pedestrians. 

 If you are hit by a car going at 30mph, your injuries are eight times 
more likely to be fatal than if the car is going at 20mph. 

 Existing 20mph zones on H&F streets have resulted in injuries from 
collisions falling by between 20 and 80 percent. 

 By making our streets safer, a 20mph limit would encourage walking 
and cycling, which are good exercise. 

 Collisions cause congestion, so fewer collisions would mean fewer 
delays and at slower speeds, vehicles flow through traffic junctions 
more smoothly which is helpful for drivers. 

 Calmer roads would make our neighbourhoods more pleasant places 
to live in. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 

4.1. The consultation ran from 9 June to 31 July 2015. We did however allow a 
further two weeks for responses sent by post to arrive, finally concluding 
the consultation on 15 August 2015, a total of nine weeks. 
 

4.2. As well as hosting an online consultation, we delivered about 80,000 
leaflets to households and businesses in the borough.  

 
4.3. In total 5,287 responses were received and recorded and of these, 2,136 

(40%) filled in an online form via the council web page and 3,151 (60%) 
replied by post. 

 
4.4. The consultation results will be reported to Cabinet in January 2016, when 

the Cabinet will decide whether to proceed with the implementation of 
additional 20 mph limits.  

 
 

Page 8



 

5. CONSULTATION RESULTS 

5.1. The consultation results show a majority of respondents in favour of the 
additional 20mph limits. The questionnaire asked a number of questions 
and a summary of the results of these are set out below. 
 

5.2. QUESTION 1 - Do you support a borough-wide 20mph speed limit on 
roads managed by Hammersmith & Fulham Council? 
 

5.3. The responses to question 1 were as follows; 
 

 45% of respondents (or 2,367) said YES  

 26% of respondents (or 1,351) said YES but only on some roads 

 29% of respondents (or 1,493) said NO 
 

Note: 76 respondents to the consultation did not respond to question 1, and as such were 
excluded from the number above 
  

                 
               

5.4. QUESTION 2 – If you ticked ‘Yes but only on some roads’, which 
road(s) should retain a 30mph speed limit?  

 
5.5. Detailed analysis of Question 2 revealed the road names and road types 

which respondents thought should be excluded from a borough wide 
20mph speed limit.  

 
5.6. The table below illustrates, in the respondents own terminology, the type 

of roads which they feel should be excluded from the 20mph speed limit 
scheme, thereby retaining a 30mph speed limit. As shown most of this 
group of respondents prefer to retain the 30mph speed limit on main roads 
(789) and secondary roads (193). Additionally, respondents named A-
roads, TfL roads, arterial roads and bus routes, making up a further 107 
responses. 

 
 

Page 9



 

TYPE OF ROAD No 

MAIN ROADS 789 

SECONDARY ROADS 193 

ALL ROADS 83 

TFL ROADS 69 

A ROADS 16 

BUS ROUTES 14 

ARTERIAL ROADS 6 

TRUNK ROADS 2 

RESIDENTIAL ROADS 1 

 
5.7. The chart below shows the most frequently-mentioned roads that 

respondents felt should be excluded from a 20mph speed limit. The 
majority of these are main or secondary roads. The following are the main 
statements used to ask for certain roads to be excluded from 20mph 
speed limit proposal; 

 All principal roads should remain 30mph 

 During peak hours Fulham Palace Road is already congested and 
the traffic moves slowly anyway. 

 The 20mph speed limit could have significant impacts on the levels 
of air pollution in the borough. 

 An introduction of 20mph speed limit could affect bus services by 
increasing bus journey times. 

  

 
 
 
When adding the number of individual responses generally against the 
proposal to those specifically against individual roads, there was still a 
majority in favour of the proposal in relation to each road, as shown below for 
the top six roads. 

Page 10



 

 
 
 

5.8. QUESTION 3 - If you are responding as an individual, please tell us 
how often you use the following ways of travelling? 
 

5.9. Question 3 of the consultation asked people about how often they use 
various modes of transport. Apart for gaining useful information about their 
principal or main modes of travel, it was considered useful to cross-
reference this information with the number of people that support or do not 
support 20mph speed limit proposals. The results received confirm that the 
majority of people, regardless of the mode of transport used, prefer to 
have a 20mph speed implemented. As shown in the chart overleaf. 

 

 
 

 

Page 11



 

5.10. QUESTION 4 - Please tell us about any further measures, such as 
speed humps or vehicle activated signs, you would like to see to 
support a 20mph speed limit. Where should these go?  

 
5.11. The purpose of this question was to gauge the public’s opinion on the use 

of traffic calming measures and which were most and least favoured in 
different locations.  

 
5.12. Of the measures mentioned, various types of information, regulatory and 

warning signs are considered, by respondents, to be the most preferred 
measures likely to support a boroughwide 20mph speed limit, followed 
closely by the use of speed humps/bumps and raised tables and then 
speed limit enforcement. Again as set out in the chart overleaf.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

5.13. Although speed humps were often mentioned in a positive way, they were 
also mentioned, in a greater number as the least preferable measure, as 
below. 

922

45 31 4 4 8
0

100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1000

Least prefered feature by group

 
      

5.14. Police enforcement was also often mentioned as an important measure 
that would ensure the 20mph speed limit compliance. Some respondents 
felt that without the help of the police, drivers simply would not obey the 
reduced speed limit. 

 
5.15. The 20 roads that were most mentioned in relation to further traffic calming 

measures being necessary are shown in chart below.  

 

Page 13



 

5.16. As part of the consultation process, emergency services and residents’ 
associations were also consulted and asked for their opinion. To date, 
none have objected or expressed concerns over the proposed measures.  

 
5.17. The Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) stressed that they, in accordance 

with Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO) guidance, will not 
routinely enforce 20mph speed limits as they should be self-enforcing. 
Where intelligence/information identifies a high risk area, the MPS will 
provide support where appropriate with enforcement, however this should 
be seen as a stop-gap action pending remedial work at a site. 

 
5.18. In addition, the MPS is currently rolling out Community Roadwatch in 

London and, where such problem locations are identified, these teams will 
be deployed to reduce speed through a high-visibility presence, backed up 
by education through contact with any speeding drivers. 

 
5.19. QUESTION 5 – In this section of the questionnaire, respondents were 

asked to indicate their age range and whether they were local residents or 
businesses or worked in the borough. By analysing the responses in more 
depth,  further information was collected; 
 

 Only 2% of respondents were under the age of 25 

 72% of respondents were between 25-65  

 25% of respondents were 65 and over. 
 

5.20. Further analysis of this question is shown in chart below, and shows a 
similar level of opinion across all three age ranges. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

5.21. The chart below shows the status of the respondents, at which they 
responded to the consultation. Three options were offered; 
 

 I am a resident 

 I have a business in the borough 

 I work in the borough 
 

 
 

5.22. The chart below shows what the respondents, based on their status in the 
borough felt about the 20mph speed limit being implemented: 
 

 
 

5.23. Appendix 3 is shows the geographical spread of opinion on 20mph speed 
limit proposal across post code areas in the borough 
  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. N/A N/A N/A 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 – existing 20mph zones and speed limits within LBHF 
 
Appendix 2 – Questions asked in 20mph borough wide consultation leaflet 
 
Appendix 3 – A map of the borough showing geographical opinion on 20mph     
                       speed limit propos 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

Appendix 1 

 
 

Page 17



 

Appendix 2 
 

    
 
 
 

     
 
 
 

Page 18



 

Appendix 3 

 

Page 19



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
 

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT & 
RESIDENTS SERVICES POLICY & 
ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE 

 
18 November 2015 

 

 

 
CYCLING IN THE BOROUGH 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services 

 

Open Report 

Classification:  For Scrutiny Review & Comment 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 

Accountable Director; Mahmood Siddiqi, Director for Transport and Highways 
 

Report Author: Richard Duffill. Borough Cycling Officer. Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 1749 
E-mail: 
Richard.Duffill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
1.      EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1. This report gives what will be an annual update on developments in cycling in 

the borough since the report to PAC on the subject in February 2015. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1.  That the Committee review the report and comment on its contents. 
 
3. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

3.1. Since the last report to this committee in February, there have been two major 
interventions that relate to cycling in the borough.  

3.2. Firstly, the borough has appointed a full time cycling officer with responsibility 
to promote cycling.  

3.3. Secondly, The Cycling Strategy 2015 has been adopted by the Council and is 
the strategic document that will facilitate the increase cycle usage to an 8% 
modal share. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Richard.Duffill@lbhf.gov.uk


 

 

4. THE CYCLING STRATEGY 

4.1. The Cycling Strategy 2015 was adopted by Cabinet on Monday 12th October 
2015.  

4.2. The final strategy took into account all the comments and feedback from 
interested groups, committees and residents and is aimed at increasing the 
modal share for cycling in the borough to 8% of all journeys. 

4.3. The Strategy is set out into five distinct sections: 

 Our target. 

 Our plans for safer and easier cycling. 

 Our plans for protecting pedestrians. 

 Our plans for improving road safety. 

 Other improvements. 

5.  Our Target. 

 

5.1.  The target we are aiming for is an increase from our reported current level of 
modal share of 5% to a figure of 8%.  

 

5.2. To put these figures into context, there will be an increase in daily trips in the 
borough from 512,000 to 563,000 based on the expected growth of the 
borough population from 182,000 to 200,000 by 2031. The modal share for 
cyclists will go from a base of 3% or 15,000 trips a day in 2011 , to 45,000 
trips by bike per day by 2031. To get to the 8% modal share target, we would 
need to attract another 30,000 trips per day by bike in the borough. 

 

5.3.  Cycling is good for everyone, even those who don’t do it as it: 

 Means less overcrowding on tubes, trains and buses 

 Fewer cars on the road means less congestion and less maintenance. 

 Less air pollution 

 Safer streets. 
 

5.4. In addition, for those who do cycle, the benefits are: 

 Benefits in health. 

 It’s a very low cost of travel 

 The journey times are quicker. 
 

5.5. The target is based upon delivering not only a number of major cycling 
schemes such as two cycle superhighways, the Quietway routes, Shepherd’s 
Bush Green ‘hamburger’, but also  local infrastructure improvements, major 

Page 21



 

developments in Wood lane with new cycling links and facilities, as well as an 
ongoing marketing campaign. 

 
5.6. However, the target is dependent on these infrastructure projects being 

completed as planned. 
 

5.7. The main focus is in making our roads safer and therefore getting new cyclists 
to ride daily rather than totally concentrating on facilities for existing 
committed cyclists 

 

6.  Our plans for safer and easier cycling. 

 

6.1 One of the most intimidating junctions in the borough for cyclists is the 
Hammersmith Gyratory. We are working with TfL to design a new scheme as 
part of a wider regeneration project for central Hammersmith as well as part of 
TfL’s ‘Better Junction’ programme.   

 

6.2. Outline designs that have been developed to accommodate safe and 
continuous cycle routes along the northern edge of the Gyratory. Traffic 
modelling is currently underway including significant growth in cycle numbers 
likely to use a better facility. 

 

6.3. We have also acknowledged that to make the scheme work, all the links to 
the East-West route need also to be improved and new cyclists should find 
the links ‘intuitive’. In particular the links from the south onto the Gyratory will 
be reviewed and improved. The work on strengthening the flyover has now 
finished and the space for cycling underneath the structure is much clearer, 
but not perfect. It is the intention to consult on the scheme in the new year. 

 
6.4 Linking with the better junction project for Hammersmith Gyratory, are the 

links to this junction along Hammersmith Road and King Street. This 
supercycle highway is named CS9 and has similar aims of providing 
segregated cycle lanes along the length of this route. 

 
6.5 Outline design is currently being undertaken and we expect the initial designs 

by the end of November. This route will be significant in our aim to attract 
more cyclists as it aims to create new cycle lanes through the centre of 
Hammersmith. 

 
6.6  Cycle superhighways within the borough also feature in the plans from TfL. 
 
6.7 A new east-west superhighway from Acton to Tower Hill is proposed which 

will consist of a two-way segregated track along the elevated A40 Westway. 
Improved links for cyclists will also be created at the Wood lane junction. 

 

6.8. The Strategy also identifies other major junctions in the borough that we 
consider need better cycling infrastructure.  

 

Page 22



 

6.9. The Holland Park Roundabout at Shepherd’s Bush Green is one such 
junction. We’re working with Transport for London to develop a ‘cycle 
hamburger’ in which cyclists and pedestrians will be able to cross safely 
through the middle of the roundabout.  

 

6.10. As part of our Local Improvement Plan, (LIP) we have identified three other 
junctions in the borough where safety improvements are needed;  

 

• Uxbridge Road and Old Oak Road  

• Scrubs Lane and North Pole Road  

• Fulham High Street and New Kings Road.  

 

6.11. For each of these junctions, we will look at changing the current layout to 
improve the safety and provision for cyclists. Such improvements might 
include advanced stop lines, cycle feeder lanes or continuous cycle lanes 
through the junctions. 

 
6.12. Our future plans also include the creation of Quietways through the borough. 

These are vitally important cycle routes using roads in our borough that are 
more suitable for less confident and cyclists who wish to cycle at a slower 
pace.  

 
6.13. The first of these routes we are working on is parallel to the Thames Path. We 

understand the many different issues that this route creates, especially 
around the pinch points near Furnival Gardens. 

 
6.14. Our primary aim is to create an alternative route for cyclists that uses quiet 

roads parallel to the pedestrian routes and in doing so try to eliminate the 
conflict points with pedestrians. Our outline proposals will be shared with the 
neighbourhood and resident groups as well as with the local cycling group.  
 

6.15. In the northern part of the borough we have two Quietways being developed.  
 
6.16.  One is a continuation of the Kensington and Chelsea Quietway heading 

towards East Acton. This route seeks to use and improve the cycle paths 
around Wormwood scrubs and open up the leisure areas to a greater number 
of residents.  

 
6.17.  The second route involves an upgrade of the Grand Union canal path. The 

aim of this route will be to open up the canalside to a greater number of 
cyclists for leisure use. 
 

6.18. One of the key elements in the Cycling Strategy is that we want to ensure that 
our roads are safer, and this can occur when traffic is slower. Almost a third of 
our roads already have a 20mph speed limit on them and to further improve 
the borough we have recently consulted on a 20mph limit for all our roads 
except the TfL network. We firmly believe that a slower speed limit on all our 
residential roads will encourage more people to cycle.  

Page 23



 

6.19 The historic design of Hammersmith Bridge with narrow lanes and pinch-

points makes it difficult for cyclists as vehicles try to overtake them on the 

bridge. We will be investigating and evaluating improvements for cyclists.  

 
7. Our Plans for protecting pedestrians. 

7.1. We believe that creating more space for cycling should however not come at 
the expense of pedestrians.  

 
7.2. One of our key actions is to not only make information and opportunities about 

safe cycling and where to cycle, available to all our residents, but where there 
are issues and conflict, on pavements and jumping red lights, we will offer 
education and skills opportunities for all our residents.  

 
7.3. We already have a very successful ‘Exchanging Places’ programme, as well 

as all our cycle training opportunities courses we run throughout the year. 
This programme will expand year on year.  

 
8. Our plans for improving Road Safety. 
 
8.1 Heavy lorries have been identified as potentially the major source of cyclists 

deaths on roads in London, and in particular where there are left turning 
movements. TfLhave introduced new legislation requiring all HGV’s to be 
fitted with safety features such as additional mirrors and side guards on all 
vehicles using the road network. With all the development taking place in 
Hammersmith and Fulham we will be working with the police to ensure that 
these laws are enforced. 

 
8.2 In addition we are working with the police on our ‘Exchanging Places’ initiative 

where resident and cyclists can experience what a HGV driver sees and vice-
versa. 

  
8.3. This is run alongside our Safer Urban Driver training initiative where all drivers 

of HGV’s undergo specific training. To date over 1300 drivers have taken this 
course in our borough.  All of these initiatives are designed to make our roads 
safer for cyclists and we have programmed a full programme for future years. 

  
8.3 Our training doesn’t stop at adults, we believe that training for all our children 

is vitally important and we will continue to offer Bikeability training at all our 
schools.  

 
9. Other Improvements.  
 
9.1 The cycling strategy also identifies that both resident and on street parking 

are important in the borough. We already install a number of new cycle 
parking hoops on our streets each year, but we need to increase these 
numbers, and in doing so, where possible, rationalise the locations and 
increase the number of secure units available. Trials of units such as the 
Bikehanger have been successful and we will be looking to plan more of 
these on our streets this year. 

Page 24



 

 
9.2 Cycle Hire in our borough is also very important as we aim to get more people 

cycling. Currently we have 60 Santander cycle docks active in the borough, 
and are working with TfL and developers to install new sites.  
 

9.3 There is a new station to be installed in Halford Road, and another possible 
station near the Gyratory. There are many areas of the borough that are not 
covered by the existing network, and as the borough has many new 
development areas, such as Wood lane and Old Oak, we are committed to 
increasing the network and identifying new locations that fill gaps. 
 

9.4 Cycle hire is not our only initiative to make more cycling more accessible to 
our residents. Having identified all the current cycle shops, we are actively 
promoting the Cycle to Work schemes that are available from these retailers. 
We are also working with Transport For Londons business activation team to 
further promote cycling to businesses which we believe will also increae the 
number of cyclists on our network.  
 

9.5 In the Strategy we have also identified the need to increase publicity for our 
residents relating to cycling and this means that we will be developing a new 
cycling web site, this will have the latest news and information on all our 
projects as well as having maps and other useful information available. The 
web site will also form the base for our Cycling Forum. This Forum will be 
used to give more information on our projects and initiatives , and will enable 
residents and local groups to feed back their wishes and desires for cycling in 
the borough.  
 

9.6 Creating a new cycling map for the borough is also a priority as it is a vital tool 
to give to all new cyclists. Making a version that works both on the computer 
and in paper form is a complex process as legibility is critical, especially with 
all the different information that is needed to be on the map. We will be 
discussing the content of the map with as many different groups as possible 
to ensure that we have a consensus. 

 
10.  Space For Cycling. 
 
10.1.  The Council acknowledges the Space for Cycling Mini-manefesto from HF 

Cyclists and will work with the group to achieve where possible the contents 
of the mini-manifesto. 

 
10.2. Initial responses to the Space for Cycling document are listed in Appendix 1. 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 
 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. None N/A N/A 

 

Page 25



 

List of Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1. Space for Cycling Update 
 
Appendix 1. 

Hf Cyclists –Mini Manifesto Comment. 
A complete cycling network in 

Hammersmith and Fulham connecting 

neighbourhoods, schools and town 

centres addressing key barriers (e.g. 

Hammersmith Gyratory, Shepherd’s 

Bush Green, bridges, main roads, railway 

lines) with direct and safe routes and 

protected space and junctions on or over 

main roads. 

The current cycle network in the borough 

consists of :  

 Quietways 

 London Cycle Network routes.  

 Tfl major cycle projects as per the 

Mayor’s Cycle Plan, including: 

-CS9,  

-East-West Westway A40.  

-Grand Union Canal Path 

Quietway 

-East Acton Quietway. 

 These will not only increase the 

links with other boroughs, but will 

also incorporate the latest design 

requirements found in the Tfl 

London Cycle Design Guide for 

safe cycle routes. 

  Major projects such as CS9 will 

also incorporate new routes for 

the Hammersmith Gyratory and 

connecting links with south of the 

Borough over Hammersmith 

Bridge. 

  Shepherds Bush Green is being 

incorporated in the TfL 

‘Hamburger’ 

 We will be reviewing all links on 

our network as we incorporate 

new improvements to our roads 

and streets as part of our LIP 

programme. 

Greater emphasis on the needs of 

pedestrians and cyclists over through 

traffic especially where space is highly 

contested. We have seen a dramatic fall 

in car ownership and use in the Borough 

so there is space to work with. 

Additionally the health issues of air 

pollution and inactive lifestyles need to 

be tackled together by providing a more 

pleasant environment and urban space for 

all. 

 The major projects we are 

undertaking show our desire , 

 The new Cycling Strategy covers 

all health and lifestyle issues. 

 The Strategy will  give cycling a 

higher profile in the Borough. 

 The appointment of a full time 

cycling officer also shows our 

commitment. 

 We also recognise the health 

issues and in particular the air 

quality issues in the borough and 

where possible we are developing 

Page 26



 

‘more environmentally friendly ‘ 

schemes. E.g. Talgarth road. 

Further use of bollards (filtered 

permeability) should be made as a rapid 

and efficient way to reduce through 

traffic using residential streets as rat runs. 

 We will work with the group to 

identify locations where filtered 

permeability would improve the 

cycling network..  

 We will introduce these measures 

as part of an overall cycle 

network. 

 Neighborhood pilot projects will 

identify possible locations. 

Stronger enforcement of 20mph limits, 

using updated police guidance, to further 

reduce casualties and provide a safer 

feeling space where 20mph limits already 

exist. 

 Enforcement can only be carried 

out by the Police. 

 We will work with the police to 

ensure greater enforcement.  

 Schemes are designed to be self 

enforcing where possible 

Wider use of 20mph limits and zones in 

the borough. This should be introduced as 

a priority for Hammersmith Bridge and 

further as a priority in Town Centers. 

Ultimately our aim is for a default, 

borough 20mph limit. 

 The current 20mph consultation 

will be concluded in the near 

future when the cabinet makes its 

decision on which areas of the 

borough become 20mph (or all).  

 
Greater attention to road quality. Potholes 

are a nuisance to all road users and a 

particular danger to cyclists; the council 

should aim to address all potholes on the 

main roads rapidly as a matter of critical 

safety. 

 We will include on the new 

cycling web site easier links to 

report Highway issues.  

 

Increased efforts to provide parking for 

bicycles to support access to bicycles for 

more residents, including placing stands 

in the road. A single car space can hold 

10 bicycles, helping free pavement space 

for pedestrians. 

 We have started an ongoing 

programme of adding cycle 

parking to our streets 

 The new web site will enable 

residents to identify where cycle 

racks are needed for us to 

investigate. 

 

Addison 

Connecting neighbourhoods under 

the railway and over Shepherds 

Bush Road by reducing traffic 

speeds and stopping rat-running. 

 We have the 20mph speed limit 

consultation nearing conclusion. 

 As part of the Neighbourhood 

reviews we will investigate where 

the main issues are. 

Askew  

Protected Space on Goldhawk 

Road, reworking a dual 

carriageway into a bicycle 

boulevard. 

 Current scheme incorporates new 

cycle lanes but does not extend to 

a cycle boulevard. 

 We are investigating a possible 

ORCA trial on a section of the 

road.(Cycle seperator on the road) 

Page 27

http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-addison/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-addison/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-addison/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-addison/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-askew/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-askew/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-askew/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-askew/


 

Avonmore and Brook Green 

Connecting neighbourhoods over 

Hammersmith Road, by the A4 

and around Olympia by making 

the one way streets in the area, 

two way for cycling 

 

 CS9 will become a major feeder 

to neighborough boroughs and 

will facilitate more access to and 

around Olympia. 

  Roads and streets adjacent to this 

route will be re-evaluated to see if 

they could become two-way for 

cyclists. 

 These streets are included in 

Ward pilot programme 

College Park and Old Oak 

Safe passage to the north of the 

borough with protected space on 

Wood Lane 

 

 The Wood lane corridor  

incorporates a number of large 

development projects where safe 

cycle passage has been identified. 

 New A40 East-west route will 

link this.  

  We are working on the whole 

area to ensure a connected and 

consistent approach for cycles.  

Fulham Broadway 

Make Fulham’s main roads into 

welcoming high streets 

 

 These roads will be reviewed as a 

LIP Neighbourhood  project 

Fulham Reach 

Safe prioritised junctions over 

Fulham Palace Road 

 

 These roads will be reviewed as a 

LIP Neighbourhood  project. 

 We are working to design a 

‘Quietway’ route that will cross 

Fulham Palace Road 

Hammersmith Broadway 

Make Hammersmith a calmer 

environment with 20mph from the 

Thames to the Town Centre 

 

 Work is underway to review all 

cycle lanes around the Gyratory 

as part of CS9 

  20mph speed limit is proposed 

for the area. 

Munster 

20mph for the heart of Fulham 

 

 Consultation is underway for a 

20mph in the area. 

North End 

Safe prioritised junctions over A4 

and measures on surrounding 

streets 

 

 Included in Ward neighbourhood  

review 

Palace Riverside 

Safe prioritised routes throughout 

Palace Riverside 

 Riverside Quietway is being 

designedto use quiet streets and 

reduce the areas of conflict with 

cyclists and pedestrians. 

Page 28

http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-avonmore-brook-green/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-avonmore-brook-green/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-avonmore-brook-green/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-avonmore-brook-green/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-avonmore-brook-green/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-college-park-old-oak/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-college-park-old-oak/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-college-park-old-oak/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-fulham-broadway/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-fulham-broadway/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-fulham-reach/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-fulham-reach/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-hammersmith-broadway/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-hammersmith-broadway/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-hammersmith-broadway/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-munster/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-north-end/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-north-end/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-north-end/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-palace-riverside/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-palace-riverside/


 

 

 

 This will also be developed as 

part of the overall cycle route 

development in the borough. 

 

Parsons Green and Walham 

Make the centres of Fulham into 

pleasant areas by reducing traffic 

speeds, removing rat runs and 

making one way streets two way 

for cycling. 

  Changes to cycle priority will 

follow a full evaluation of the 

possible routes.  

Ravenscourt Park 

Aschurch Park Villas is used as a 

rat-run despite existing calming 

 We will review the existing 

scheme to identify is additional 

measures are needed. 

Sands End 

Safe prioritised routes along 

Wandsworth Bridge Road 

 

 This is included in our 

Neighbourhood project plans. 

 We aim to divert cyclists onto 

other quiet routes in area. 

Shepherd’s Bush Green 

Protected Space around 

Shepherd’s Bush Green and 

Holland Park Roundabout 

 

 The Wood lane corridor  

incorporates a number of large 

development projects where safe 

cycle passage has been identified. 

 New A40 east-west route will 

link to this. 

  We are working on the whole 

area to ensure a connected and 

consistent approach for cycles. 

 

Town 

Safer junctions with lower speeds 

to improve entry to borough 

 

 20 mph borough speed limit is 

out to consultation for the Town 

centre. 

 The cycle superhighway design 

will also include improved entry 

junctions. 

 

Wormholt and White City 

Safe Routes to Schools over 

Uxbridge Road and on key side 

streets 

 

 We will include this in the 

neighbourhood review. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 29

http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-parsons-green-walham/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-parsons-green-walham/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-parsons-green-walham/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-parsons-green-walham/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-parsons-green-walham/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-ravenscourt-park/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-ravenscourt-park/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-sands-end/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-sands-end/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-shepherds-bush-green/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-shepherds-bush-green/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-shepherds-bush-green/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-town/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-town/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-wormholt-white-city/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-wormholt-white-city/
http://hfcyclists.org.uk/spaceforcycling/space-cycling-wormholt-white-city/


 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 

Fulham 

COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT 

AND RESIDENTS SERVICES POLICY & 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

18 NOVEMBER 2015 

 
 

 

REVISED STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY  

Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Residents 
Services – Councillor Wesley Harcourt 
 

Open Report 

Classification - For Policy & Accountability Review & Comment 

Key Decision: NO  

Wards Affected: All 

Accountable Director: Nicholas Austin - Director for Environmental Health 
 

Report Author: Valerie Simpson – Head 
of Licensing and Trading Standards 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8753 3905 
E-mail: valerie.simpson@lbhf.gov.uk   

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 requires every Council to have a ‘Statement of Licensing 
Policy’ which will include information stipulated within the Secretary of State’s 
Statutory Guidance to Licensing Authorities in England and Wales. 
 

1.2 The Council’s ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ has undergone a full review this year 
due to changes in legislation, and the revised version is required to be adopted by 
the Full Council in order to comply with the Licensing Act 2003.  The draft, revised 
Statement of Licensing Policy has undergone a 16 week public consultation 
exercise which ended on the 30 September 2015. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1. That this Committee review and comment upon the revised Statement of Licensing 
Policy, attached as Appendix 1 to this report, and recommends that Full Council 
approves and adopts the revised Statement of Licensing Policy. 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7

mailto:valerie.simpson@lbhf.gov.uk


 
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 
 

3.1. To ensure that the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy complies with section 5 
of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

3.2. The draft Statement of Licensing Policy must be adopted by Full Council before it 
comes into effect in February 2016. 
 

4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
  

4.1 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy provides advice and guidance to the 
Licensing Authority when exercising its functions under the Licensing Act 2003. It 
also provides guidance to both applicants and objectors. 

 
4.2 The Council’s current Statement of Licensing Policy took effect in July 2012. 

However, there have recently been a number of amendments to licensing 
legislation and to the Secretary of State’s Statutory Guidance (“Guidance”) which 
the Licensing Authority must have regard to when carrying out its licensing 
functions. In order to maintain an up to date Policy Statement a full review took 
place this year.  A draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared 
and has undergone a 16 week public consultation. 
 

4.3 The 2012 Statement of Licensing Policy has been revised to reflect subsequent 
changes in legislation and Guidance. A copy of the draft, amended Statement of 
Licensing Policy is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. Annex 2 – 5 of the Policy, 
which relate to the Cumulative Impact Zones in Fulham Town Centre and 
Shepherds Bush and subsequent reviews of these zones in 2015, can be seen on 
the LBHF website, link at the end of this report. 
 

4.4 The main changes made prior to the public consultation reflected the changes in 

legislation and the latest version of the Guidance, a review of the special 

policies in Fulham Broadway and Shepherds Bush, updated links to various 
websites, and updated contact details. These changes are summarised in table 1 
below. 

 

Section of the Statement 
of Licensing Policy 

Changes made 

Paragraphs 2.1 – 2.3 

 
New paragraphs describing the borough.  

Paragraph 3.9  Additional paragraph briefly describing ‘Local Area Risk 
Assessments’. 

 
Paragraph 4.2 Amended to inform the reader that the ‘local pool of 

conditions’ is currently under review. 

 
Paragraph 6.3 Paragraph extended to inform the reader that the 

Cumulative Impact Zone in Fulham Broadway has 
undergone a review and will remain in place. 

 
Paragraph 6.4 Paragraph extended to inform the reader that the 

Cumulative Impact Zone in Shepherds Bush has 
undergone a review and will remain in place. 

Page 31



 
 

Paragraph 15.7 New paragraph informing the reader of more detail 
concerning ‘Local area Risk Assessments’. 

Paragraphs 18.19 – 20 Both paragraphs deleted – referred to the 2012 London 
Olympics. 

Annex 2 New Mandatory Conditions. 
 

Annex 3 Local Pool of Conditions deleted – awaiting the results of 
a full review. 

Annex 5 Fulham Town Centre – Cumulative Impact Zone Data 
Report 2015. 
 

Annex 7 Shepherds Bush - Cumulative Impact Zone Data Report 
2015. 
 

Glossary Amended to show Exempt Regulated Entertainment. 

            Table 1: Summary of changes made to the Statement of Licensing Policy 

 

4.5 Six responses were received as a result of the public consultation exercise, the 

results can be seen on the LBHF website, link at the end of this report. 

 
4.6 The main additional amendments to the Policy post consultation relate to guidance 

in relation to possible sexual exploitation of children in licensed premises, the 
Council’s support for well run licensed premises, clarification of the relationship 
between planning and licensing legislation, and  the removal of the Council’s ‘Pool 
of Conditions’ – this will become a separate document displayed on our website in 
order that it can be amended as required without having the whole Statement of 
Licensing Policy go through this review process.  The remaining amendments 
update the effects of changes in legislation and Guidance, and amendments to 
paragraphs to make them more easily understandable. 
 

4.7 On the 01 April 2015 there were 871 Premises Licences and 11 Club Premises 
Certificates in the borough.  In relation to the Cumulative Impact Zones, the Fulham 
Town Centre zone has been in place since 2009 and the Shepherds Bush zone 
since 2011.  In depth analysis of the effect of late night licensed premises in these 
areas in 2009 and 2011 respectively showed that they were a strong contributing 
factor to an increase in alcohol related crime and disorder.  Since the zones were 
put into effect there has been a significant reduction in alcohol related crime and 
disorder in these areas. 
 

4.8 The crime, anti-social behaviour and nuisance data supporting the imposition of 
these zones has been thoroughly reviewed in 2015.  The data shows that the effect 
of these zones is positive in that crime, anti-social behaviour and nuisance 
continues to show a reduction from the data collected prior to the creation of these 
zones. However, should the zones be deleted there is a high probability that an 
increase in licensed premises, particularly late night venues, will give rise to an 
increase in crime, anti-social behaviour and nuisance. 
 

4.9 The Statement of Licensing Policy as a whole plays an important part in ensuring 
that the borough has a thriving, and safe, night time economy for residents, visitors 
and businesses.  The Statement of Licensing Policy strives to protect residents and 
visitors from alcohol related crime and anti-social behaviour while encouraging well 
run businesses to prosper within the borough. 
 

Page 32



 
 

4.9 It should be noted that the Statement of Licensing Policy can be reviewed at any 
time and, for example, should the Council decide that specific areas of the borough 
would benefit from a more flexible or different approach to encourage regeneration 
the Policy can be amended to reflect this.  

 
5. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

 

5.1    The latest version of the Secretary of State’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities has 
introduced ‘Local Area Risk Assessments’ which will require applicants to address 
local issues within their applications, and require them to explain how they  will 
reduce any adverse impact on the local environment should an application be 
granted.  This should assist Licensing Authorities when making decisions relating to 
applications for the new grant of, or a variation to an existing, licence. 

 
5.2 Vulnerable children in licensed premises have also been considered.  Although 

children under the age of 16 are, in most cases, required to be accompanied by an 
adult in premises licensed to sell or supply alcohol, particular attention to the risk to 
children in these premises has been given in the revised Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 

 

6. CONSULTATION 
 

6.1 The draft, revised Statement of Licensing Policy commenced a 16 week public 
consultation exercise on the 8 June 2015. Details were sent to every Residents’ 
group in the Borough in early June 2015.  Details were also sent to all premises 
licence holders, to representative groups of the licensing industry and to the 
Chamber of Commerce.  The draft Policy was placed on the Council’s website, link 
at the end of this report. 

Details of the public consultation were also included in the Council’s e-newsletter. 

 
6.2 Details of the revisions and the weblink to the draft Policy were sent to teams within 

Environmental Health, Planning, Highways, Children’s’ Services, the Council’s 
Events Team, the Director of  Public Health’s team, the Metropolitan Police, the 
Parks Police, the Fire Authority, local hospitals, all Hammersmith and Fulham 
Councillors, the three Town Centre Managers and neighbouring Boroughs. 

 
6.3 Six responses were received from the Council’s Legal Department, the Trading 

Standards Team, the Head of Licensing and Trading Standards, the Noise and 
Nuisance Team, the Metropolitan Police and the Food and Health and Safety Team.  
The results can be seen on the LBHF website, link at the end of this report. 

 

7. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 The Council, when taking decisions in relation to any of its functions, must comply 

with its public sector equality duty as set out in s149 of the Equality Act 2010 (the 
Act) to consider how the decisions they make, and the services they deliver, affect 

Page 33



 
 

people who share different protected characteristics in relation to age, race and 
disabilities etc  A screening for the equalities impact assessment has been carried 
out on the effect of the policy. The policy has low relevance in relation to its impact 
on the areas under the statutory duties contained in the equalities impact 
assessment, but contributes towards the corporate priorities of the council, in 
relation to have due regard to the three aims of the duty, namely :  
 
• to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 

 conduct prohibited by the Act; 
• to advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and people who do not share it; and 
• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 

and people who do not share it. 
 

 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1 The Legal implications are set out in the body of the report. 

 
8.2 Implications to be verified by: Tasnim Shawkat, Director for Law, 020 8753 2700 

[Reference: HT30098387]. 
 
 

9 FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. However any 
financial impact arising as a result of this policy will be managed as part of the 
budget monitoring process. 

 
9.2 Implications to be verified by: Mark Jones, Director for Finance and Resources – 

TTS/ELRS, 020 8753 6700 

 

10. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 

 

10.1  Implications for business in the borough from the introduction of this revised policy 
are considered to be minimal.  The Statement of Licensing Policy has been revised 
to reflect the recent changes in the latest version of the Secretary of State’s 
Guidance to Licensing Authorities and licensing legislation.  Local area risk 
assessments should be considered and completed by new applicants and existing 
licence holders, as they provide a basis upon which future Licensing Act 
applications will be assessed. 

10.2 This new approach represents a major opportunity for local businesses to promote, 
and clearly state within their application how they will promote, the licensing 
objectives and ensure high standards of operation which respect the sensitivities of 
their locality. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 
 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

11.1 The failure to meet new and existing statutory requirements is specifically 
addressed in the Environmental Health Service Group’s risk register. Controls are in 
place to mitigate this risk include training, internal auditing, periodic updates of the 
scheme of delegation and the business planning process. 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

No. 

 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 

Location 

1. The Licensing Act 2003; the 

Secretary of State’s Guidance 

and the licensing regulations  

Patrick Crowley 020 7341 

5601 

Licensing  

 

LIST OF APPENDICES: 

Appendix 1 – Draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy (post consultation version) 

 

WEBLINK TO: 

Cumulative Impact Zone reviews; 

Consultation responses; 

Draft Statement of Licensing Policy submitted for public consultation; 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/594

66_Licensing_policy.asp 

 

 

Page 35

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp


 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF LICENSING 
POLICY 

 

 

February 2016 – February 2021 
 

Page 36



 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham Statement of Licensing 
Policy 
Issued February 2016  

 

 

This policy has been prepared in accordance 
with the Secretary of State’s Guidance 
(March 2015) issued under Section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003. 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/
explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-
issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003 

 
Any website links within this document that 
no longer work will be updated or removed. 
 
This Policy relates to the sale or supply of 
alcohol, the provision of regulated 
entertainment, and the provision of late night 
refreshment. 

 
 

If you would like more information, 
please contact us: 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Licensing Authority 
PO Box 66532 
London 
W8 9GJ 

 
 

Phone: 020 8753 1081 

Email:  licensing@lbhf.gov.uk 

Website:  www.lbhf.gov.uk 

  

Page 37

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
mailto:licensing@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/


 

Contents 
 

Page(s) 
 

1.  Foreword 5 - 6 
 

2.  Introduction and purpose 6 - 8 
 

3.  Fundamental principles 9 - 10 
 

4.  Licence Conditions 10 - 12 
 

5.  Licensing Hours 12 - 13 
 

6.  Cumulative impact   13 - 14 
 

7.  Promotion of other strategies   14 - 15 
 

8.  Prevention of crime and disorder 15 - 17 
 

9.  Public safety 17 - 18 
 

10. Prevention of nuisance 19 - 20 
 

11. Protection of children from harm 20 - 22 
 

12. Premises licence 22 
 

13. Variations to existing Premises Licence 22 - 24 
 

14. Planning permission 24 - 25 
 

15. Operating schedule 25 - 32 
 

16. Consultation 32 
 

17. Applications for personal licences 32 - 33 
 

18. Temporary Event Notices (TENs) 33 – 35 
 

19. Designated Premises Supervisor in Community Premises 35 - 36 
 

20. Enforcement 36 - 37 
 

21. Dealing with complaints, representations and reviews 37 - 38 
 

22. Consideration of our Residents 38 - 39 
 

23. Licensing Committee 39 – 40 

 

24. Support for Local Businesses 40 - 41 

 

25. Human Rights 41 
 
 

Annex 1: Mandatory Licensing Conditions 42 - 52 
 

Annex 2: Special Licensing Policy for Fulham Area 53 

Annex 3: Fulham Area Cumulative Impact Zone 
Data Report 2015       54 - 62 

 

Annex 4: Special Licensing Policy for Shepherd’s Bush Area  63 - 65 

 Page 38



 

Annex 5: Shepherds Bush Area Cumulative Impact 
 Zone Data Report 2015     66 - 79 

 

Glossary 80 - 83 
 

Contact Details  84 

Page 39



5 

 

 

1 Foreword 
 

 
1.1 The Licensing Authority will have regard to this policy when carrying out its functions under the 

Licensing  Act 2003 (“the Act”). 
 
1.2 The Act requires the Licensing Authority to publish this Statement of Licensing Policy. This policy 

will be used as a guide in decision making with regard to licensing matters. 
 
1.3 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory licensing objectives 

which must be promoted when licensing functions are undertaken, these are: 
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder; 

• Public safety; 

• The prevention of public nuisance; and 

• The protection of children from harm. 
 

Each objective is of equal importance. It is important to note that there are no other licensing 
objectives. 

 
1.4 The Licensing Authority is keen to promote the cultural life of our borough and licensing will be 

approached with a view to encouraging all forms of licensable activity that are carried out in ways 
consistent with the Licensing Objectives. 

 
1.5 Our licensing policy is designed to build upon the work presently carried out by the Licensing 

Authority to maintain a dynamic, innovative and attractive place to live, work and relax. The council 
has prepared a number of strategies that contain visions, aims and objectives to promote, improve 
and protect the borough. Not only has this Statement of Licensing Policy been prepared to promote 
the four Licensing Objectives under the Act, the Licensing Authority has also had regard to the local 
strategies which have been developed for the borough, its residents, businesses, workers and 
visitors. The Licensing Authority intends to secure proper integration with local crime prevention, 
planning, transport, tourism and cultural strategies and t h e  council’s equal opportunities policy 
and local alcohol licensing strategy by ensuring our licensing policy is consistent with their aims and 
objectives.  This Statement of Licensing Policy also recognises the National Alcohol Strategy. 

 
1.6 The Licensing Authority will seek to implement the policy in a positive and inclusive way for the 

whole community. 
 

1.7 Our aim is to target premises which are causing problems within our communities, and have a 
lighter touch for the majority of businesses and community activities which enhance peoples’ lives 
by providing worthwhile opportunities for the enjoyment of leisure time without having a negative 
impact. Premises that are associated with any crime or disorder, threaten public safety, generate 
public nuisance or threaten the well being of children will be targeted for enforcement action.  
However, partners will consistently work towards the promotion of the four licensing objectives pro-
actively and would hope that re-active work targeting problem premises is kept to a minimum. 

 
1.8 An effective licensing policy, alongside other initiatives, can work towards promoting t h e  positive 

aspects of life in the borough, such as increasing the leisure industry provision for the community 
and encouraging regeneration of town centres, as well as controlling the negative impacts such as 

Page 40



6 

 

 

increase in noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and crime and disorder. 
 
1.9 Through this policy the Licensing Authority hopes that local people and visitors to Hammersmith 

and Fulham will have better opportunities to enjoy their leisure time safely without fear of violence, 
intimidation or disorder while on, arriving at, or leaving licensed premises. In addition, and  in 
response to concerns about the impact of longer trading hours on behaviour and disturbance at 
night, we have given the protection of local residents, whose lives can be blighted by disturbance 
and antisocial behaviour associated with some of the people visiting places of entertainment, a 
central place in our strategy. The Local Development Framework sets out the council’s planning 
policies for developing land, improving transport and protecting the environment. The council is 
required to determine planning applications in accordance with the Local Development Framework, 
the London Plan and any other material considerations.  The Licensing Authority will take account of 
business needs and, where applicable, special policies that will help to enhance the borough. 

 
1.10 Hammersmith & Fulham is a socially diverse area with a cosmopolitan population, sharing the 

advantages and disadvantages of inner city life.  This presents the challenge of securing the safety 
and amenity of residential communities while facilitating a sustainable entertainment and cultural 
industry. To date, the Licensing Authority has been successful in seeking to strike this balance, and 
has a proven track record of treating each application in a fair and considered way. 

 
1.11 Green spaces have been protected and extended throughout the 1990s to improve the local quality 

of life. The borough is home to one of Europe’s largest shopping centres, Westfield, three major 
football clubs; Chelsea, Fulham and Queens Park Rangers, a national exhibition centre, Olympia, and 
two of London’s major live entertainment venues, the HMV Hammersmith Apollo and the Shepherds 
Bush Empire.   

 
1.12 The Act requires the Licensing Authority to review the licensing policy every five years. All reviews 

will be subject to further consultation with all stakeholders and any revised policy will be published. 
Issues that arise concerning implementation of the policy will be recorded in an issue log and taken 
into account during any review. 

 
 

2 Introduction and purpose 
 
2.1 Hammersmith & Fulham is one of 13 inner-London boroughs.  It is situated in west London, on the 

transport routes between the city and Heathrow airport. 
 
2.2 It is a long, narrow borough, running north to south with a river border at its south and south-west 

side.  It is bordered by six London boroughs – Brent to the north, Kensington and Chelsea to the 
east, Wandsworth and Richmond-upon-Thames to the south, and Ealing and Hounslow to the 
west.  Not including the City of London, it is the third smallest London borough in terms of area, 
covering 1,640 hectares.  It has three town centres – Shepherd’s Bush, Hammersmith and Fulham. 

 
2.3 Hammersmith & Fulham is made up of 16 electoral wards.  These range in size from 55 hectares 

to 344 hectares. 
 
2.4 The Licensing Authority for the London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham makes this Statement of 

Licensing Policy in accordance with section 5 of the Act. 
 
 

Page 41

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Environment_and_Planning/Planning/Planning_policy/20344_Local_Development_Framework.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Environment_and_Planning/Planning/Planning_policy/20344_Local_Development_Framework.asp


7 

 

 

2.5 This policy statement has, amongst other things, four main purposes which are: 

 
• To inform Members of the Licensing Committee of the powers of the Licensing Authority and 

the boundaries within which to make decisions. 
 

• To inform licence applicants of the parameters within which the Licensing Authority will make 
licensing decisions and how licensed premises are likely to be able to operate within the 
borough. 

• To inform local residents and businesses of the considerations which the Licensing Authority 
will take when making licensing decisions. 

• To inform Responsible Authorities of their powers under the Act to promote the four Licensing 
Objectives. 

 
2.6 The policy relates to the following activities (known as licensable activities) that are required to be 

licensed under the Act: 
 

a. The retail sale of alcohol including licensing of individuals, premises, and purchases via the 
internet or mail order; 

b. The supply of alcohol to members of club premises; 
c. The provision of regulated entertainment in the presence of an audience. The meaning of 

regulated entertainment is described in more detail in the Licensing Act 2003, and in particular in 
Schedule 1 of that Act and includes: 

 
• film exhibitions 

• performances of a play 

• indoor sporting events 

• boxing or wrestling events 

• live music performances 

• playing of recorded music 

• performances of dance 

 

Further details regarding regulated entertainment and exemptions from the need for licensing 
permissions can be found in the Glossary attached to this document. 

 
d. The licensing of activities on a temporary basis, Temporary Event Notices (TENs); and 
e. The provision of late night refreshment i.e. supply of hot food or hot drink from premises, anytime 

between 11pm and 5am. 
 
 
2.7 The two main types of licences issued under the legislation are personal and premises licences. Club 

premises certificates can also be issued for qualifying clubs carrying out qualifying club activities. 
TENs may be issued for licensable activities involving no more than 499 people and lasting no more 
than 168 hours (7 days). References to licences in this document include certificates, TENs or other 
permissions under the Act. 

 

2.8 Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, at qualifying clubs and at 
temporary events within the terms of the Act.  The conditions attached to licences and / or 
Temporary Event Notices will be focused on matters that are within the control of individual 
licensees. 

 

Page 42



8 

 

 

Accordingly, conditions will centre on the premises and on the vicinity of those premises. What is in 
the vicinity will depend on the facts of each individual case. However, the Licensing Authority will 
primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities at the licensed premises on members of the 
public living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned. 

 
2.9 Every application made to the Licensing Authority will be considered on its own merits. This policy 

will be used as a basis for coming to consistent and transparent decisions on licence applications. 
 

2.10 The Licensing Authority has taken full account of the guidance issued to it by the Secretary of State 
under section 182 of the Act:  

Where it is necessary to depart from that guidance, the Licensing Authority will give its reasons for 
doing so.  A copy of the Statutory Guidance can be found on the licensing pages of our website. 

 
2.11 Additionally, in formulating this policy document the Licensing Authority has had regard to the 

provisions of the European Convention on Human Rights, the Equality Act 2010 and has also taken 
into account the provisions of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

 

2.12 The scope of this policy covers all applications made under the Act. Designated sports grounds, 
events and exhibition centres are the subject of separate legislation. Consideration of applications 
for premises licences will be limited to those activities that are licensable under the Act. 

 

2.13 Nothing in this policy will undermine any person from applying for a variety of permissions under the 
Act. 

 

2.14 The Policy has been drawn up in consultation with a number of bodies and organisations, including: 

 
• Metropolitan Police; 

• London Fire and Emergency 

 Planning Authority; 

• Representatives of holders of premises licences in the borough; 

• Representatives of holders of club premises certificates in the borough; 

• Representatives of holders of personal licences issued by the borough; 

• Representatives of residents and businesses in the area, including resident groups, tenants 
associations and societies; 

• The Area Child Protection Committee; 

 The Director of Public Health; 

 Accident and Emergency and the London Ambulance service; 

• British Transport Police; 

• London Underground; 

• Neighbouring authorities; 

• British Institute of Innkeeping; 

• Chamber of Commerce; 

• The Substance Misuse and Offender Care Team (SMOC); 

• Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership; and 

• Trade unions; 
 
2.15 This revised policy comes into force on the XX February 2016. 

 

2.16 This policy is not intended to duplicate existing legislation and regulatory regimes that already place 
obligations on employers. 

Page 43



9 

 

 

3 Fundamental principles 
 
3.1 In carrying out its licensing functions, the Licensing Authority will actively seek to promote the four 

Licensing Objectives set out in section 4 of the Act. These are: 
 
 

• The prevention of crime and disorder; 

• Public safety; 

• The prevention of public nuisance; 

• The protection of children from harm. 

 

3.2 To achieve these objectives the Licensing Authority will use its full range of powers and engage all 
relevant responsible authorities. Accordingly, the Licensing Authority will enter into appropriate 
partnership arrangements, working closely with the police, the fire authority, Trading Standards, 
Environmental Health, Public Health, local businesses, community representatives and local 
people in meeting these objectives. 

 
3.3 The Licensing Authority has significant experience and awareness of the requirements of, and issues 

surrounding, the entertainment and leisure industry and we will work with our stakeholders to ensure 
mutual co-existence. 

 
3.4 The Act provides the entertainment and leisure industries with greater freedom and flexibility to meet 

the demands of its customers but also provides some extra powers for the Licensing Authority and 
other authorised officers to work closely to protect residents from disturbance. 

 
3.5 Deregulation inevitably brings with it a higher degree of self-regulation by licence and certificate 

holders. This shift means that the primary responsibility for controlling activities on licensed premises 
firmly rests on the licence holders, designated premises supervisors and managers of such 
premises. This Licensing Authority, with support from the other enforcement agencies, will keep the 
activities of these licence holders under review. This means that all concerned must work closely 
together in partnership for the community, of which both businesses and residents form a part. 

 
3.6 Responsible Authorities or other persons may view applications for Club Premises Certificates and 

Premises Licences, and may make representations to the Licensing Authority where they believe a 
licence application,  i f  granted,  wi l l  undermine one or more of the Licensing Objectives. (see 
Glossary of terms for other persons and Responsible Authority definitions) 

 
3.7 All relevant representations will be considered during the decision making process, unless they are 

considered to be frivolous, vexatious or repetitious in nature.  All representations must be made to 
the Licensing Authority.  Only written representations sent by e-mail, post or hand delivered will be 
accepted however, where circumstances prevent this the Licensing Authority shall consider any 
other forms of representation on a case by case basis. 

 
3.8 If relevant representations are received by the Licensing Authority, the application will be determined 

by a Licensing Sub-Committee consisting of three Members of the full Licensing Committee. Where 
no relevant representations have been made licences will be issued by licensing officers under 
delegated powers. In making decisions on licence applications, the Licensing Sub-Committee must 
have regard to the Act and relevant Regulations, the Guidance published by the Home Office under 
s.182 of the Act, and this Statement of Licensing Policy. 

Page 44



10 

 

 

 
3.9 Applicants should also have regard to these documents when preparing their applications.  Applicants 

should note paragraph 8.34 of the Secretary of State’s Guidance in particular, which states that: 
 
‘Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to demonstrate, 
when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, that they 
understand: 
  
• the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder hotspots, 

proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may congregate;  
• any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and  
• any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary schemes including 

local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other schemes) which may help to mitigate 
potential risks.   
 

Please see paragraph 15.7 for more information regarding local area risk assessments.  
 
3.10 Where relevant representations have been received by the Council, conditions attached to licences, 

certificates  and Temporary  Event  Notices  will  be  tailored  to  the  individual  style  and 
characteristics of the premises and events concerned. They will relate to the licensing objectives and 
be restricted to matters within the control of individual licence holders. 

 
3.11 In making decisions on licensing applications and imposing conditions, the Licensing Authority will 

primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at the licensed premises on 
members of the public living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned relating to 
the four Licensing Objectives. 

 

4 Licence conditions 
 

Schedule 4 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 amended the Act to give the Secretary of State the 
power to impose new mandatory licensing conditions in relation to the supply of alcohol under the 
authority of a premises licence or club premises certificate. 

 
These new mandatory licensing conditions apply to all existing and future premises licences which 
authorise the sale or supply of alcohol. These conditions override any conditions already included in 
a premises licence or club premises certificate, so far as they are identical to the existing conditions 
or inconsistent with, and more onerous than, the existing conditions. The new conditions will apply 
to every licence and certificate authorising the sale or supply of alcohol from the date that they come 
into force. 

 
Mandatory Conditions 

 
4.1  Mandatory conditions must be attached to all Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates 

authorising the sale and supply of alcohol, see Annex 1 for details. These conditions, amongst other 
things, in effect: 

•  Ban irresponsible drink promotions; 

•  Ban the dispensing of alcohol directly into the mouth; and 

• Ensure that customers have access to free tap water so that they can space out their drinks and 
not get too intoxicated too quickly. 

Page 45



11 

 

 

•  Require an age verification policy to be in place to prevent underage sales; and 

• Ensure that customers have the opportunity to choose small measures of beers, ciders, spirits 
and wine. 

• Minimum price of alcohol (duty plus VAT) 
 

Local Pool of Conditions 
 
4.2 Appropriate and proportionate conditions which relate to the Licensing Objectives will be drawn in 

particular circumstances from the National Pool of Conditions, issued by the Home Office. Further 
information regarding these conditions can be found at: 

 
ht tps:/ /www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/at tachment_data/f i le /9811
5/pools-condit ions.pdf  .  

 

This does not preclude the Licensing Authority from attaching other conditions appropriate for the 
promotion of the four licensing objectives. 

 
The Licensing Authority is currently carrying out a full review of its own pool of conditions and these will be 
available on the licensing pages of our website once completed. Applicants should consider the National 
Pool and local pool of conditions (when the review is completed) and incorporate them into their 
operating schedules, as they consider appropriate, to promote each of the Licensing Objectives. 

 
Football Conditions 

 
4.3 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that it is unique in the fact that it has 3 major football clubs 

within its boundaries. Given the size of our borough and the raised level of risk of crime and disorder 
occurring on match days, any premises in the vicinity of our football grounds will be expected to 
robustly deal with this issue in their operating schedule. 

4.4 Where a relevant representation is made by the Police, another Responsible Authority, or ‘other 
person’ in respect of an application made by a licence holder, the Licensing Authority may apply 
enhanced “match day” conditions to ensure the Licensing Objectives are promoted. This may 
include, but is not limited to, the following conditions: 

 
• Restriction of hours in the run up to and after ‘Kick Off’ 

• Restriction of sales of alcohol in glass bottles or the use of glass for any drinks on match days 

• Conditions for premises to robustly control the spillage of customers onto the highway through 
overcrowding 

• to prevent their customers from drinking or taking alcohol out onto the street outside the 
premises on match days 

• The ability for the Police or Licensing Authority to require the premises to close on grounds of 
Public Safety if required to do so 

• Having door supervisors on duty 

• Having a Designated Premise Supervisor/Personal Licence Holder on the premises 

• Using display cabinets with shutters for alcohol 

 

Similar conditions may also be applied on ‘victory day’ parades. 
 
4.5 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that off licences can also play a major part in the overall 

impact on the crime and disorder objective and as such would seek to ensure these conditions are 

Page 46

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/98115/pools-conditions.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/98115/pools-conditions.pdf
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/


12 

 

 

also mirrored as required on off licences identified by the Police and Licensing Authority as having a 
potential impact.  The Police and Licensing Authority are especially keen to control the sale of 
alcohol in glass bottles on match days and as such may require that no bottles are sold on match 
days. 

 
4.6 It has also been the experience of the Licensing Authority that at times it may be required to 

completely close ‘off’ and ‘on’ licensed premises depending on the information received by the 
Football Intelligence Unit.    In order to ensure this can be effectively controlled the Licensing 
Authority and the Football Intelligence Unit will liaise with relevant premises operators at the earliest 
opportunity in order to discuss closure. Informal cooperation will always be preferred.  However, 
review proceedings will necessarily follow when a Magistrates’ Court has made a closure 
order under section 80 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, or the 
Crown Court has made a closure order on appeal under section 84 of that Act. 

 
4.7 Licence holders will ensure that conditions attached to the licence are complied with at all times.  

 

 
 

5 Licensing hours 
 
5.1 Where there is a relevant representation, the Licensing Authority will consider each particular case 

on its merits having regard in particular to the following matters: 
 

• Whether  the  licensed  activities  are  likely  to  have  an  adverse  impact  especially  on  local 
residents and, if there is potential to have an adverse impact, what, if any, appropriate measures 
will be put in place to prevent it; 

 

• Whether there will be a substantial increase in the cumulative adverse impact from these or 
similar activities, on an adjacent residential area; 

 

• Whether there is a suitable level of public transport accessibility to and from the premises at the 
appropriate times; 

 

• Whether the activity will be likely to lead to a harmful and unmanageable increase in car parking 
demand in surrounding residential streets suffering high levels of parking stress or on roads 
forming part of the Strategic London Road Network or the London Bus Priority Network leading 
to a negative impact on the Licensing Objectives relating to the prevention of crime, disorder and 
nuisance; 

 

• Whether there have been any representations made by Responsible Authorities, or other 
relevant agency or representative. 

 
5.2 The Licensing Authority will closely scrutinise extended hours applications to ensure that the 

Licensing Objectives are met. In determining an application the licensing committee might decide 
that the circumstances are such that a restriction on hours is the only appropriate means to achieve 
the Licensing Objectives. If an ‘hours’ restriction is imposed, the Licensing Authority will normally 
require that customers should be allowed a minimum of thirty minutes to consume alcohol.  For 
example, if the closing time on the application is stated as 12 midnight, the latest time that a licence 
would be granted to serve alcohol would be 11:30pm, as the Licensing Authority will normally allow a 
minimum of 30 minutes to consume alcohol that has been purchased before the terminal hour.  

 
5.3 In determining representations to an application which incorporates an external area to the 

Page 47



13 

 

 

premises, the licensing committee might decide that the circumstances are such that a restriction 
on hours in that area is the only appropriate means to achieve the promotion of the Licensing 
Objectives. 

 
5.4 The Licensing Authority advises applicants that it would be beneficial if a lawful planning use can be 

demonstrated for the activities proposed in all applications for premises licences. 
 
5.5 It will be the normal policy of the Licensing Authority to allow shops, stores and supermarkets to 

provide sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises at any times (in line with permitted 
planning hours) when the retail outlet is open for shopping unless there are good reasons based 
on the Licensing Objectives for restricting those hours. Should there be evidence regarding street 
drinking issues, child protection issues, issues in relation to public nuisance and disorder in the 
vicinity of this type of premises, the Licensing Authority may restrict the hours of the sale of alcohol. 

 

 
6. Cumulative Impact 

 
6.1 In determining an application where there has been a relevant representation the Licensing 

Authority will, where appropriate, take into account the cumulative (collective) effect of the number, 
type and density of licensed premises already existing in the area. A saturation of licensed premises 
can attract customers to an area to such a degree that it has an adverse impact on the surrounding 
area beyond the control of individual licence holders. 

 
6.2 In accordance with paragraph 13.30 of the Secretary of State’s current Guidance, where the 

cumulative effect of many licensed premises within an area gives rise to problems of public 
disorder and nuisance in the surrounding area the Licensing Authority may consider it 
inappropriate for any further licensed premises to be established in the area or extension to 
licensed hours of existing premises to be approved. In such circumstances, an application for a 
licence for activities which would undermine the promotion of any of the four Licensing Objectives 
would be refused. 

 

6.3 In 2009 the Licensing Authority identified Fulham Broadway as an area where the number, type and 
density of premises providing licensable activities after 11pm was having a serious negative impact 
on the local community and local amenities. In order to ensure that residents are protected from the 
negative impact of late night local licensing activities, the Licensing Authority adopted a special 
policy. This policy is set out in Annex 4 and will be applicable for new licences or variations of 
existing licences, except applications for Personal Licences. The special policy will be reviewed 
regularly to assess whether it is still needed or should be expanded or amended.  The special policy 
has been reviewed in 2015 and data from the police, ambulance service, and noise complaints has 
been assessed.  The conclusion to this review is that alcohol related crime, anti social behavior and 
noise complaints have been reduced, after midnight in particular, since the special policy was 
introduced in 2009.  A report on crime, disorder and noise is attached as Annex 5.  This is a strong 
indication that the purpose of the special policy is being achieved and that it should remain in place. 

 
6.4 In 2011 the Licensing Authority also identified Shepherd’s Bush as an area which was suffering 

adversely from the concentration of a number of licensed premises in a specified area. After an 
extensive evidence gathering process a further special policy was adopted by the Licensing 
Authority in June 2011. The Policy is set out in Annex 6. This policy is also only applicable where 

Page 48



14 

 

 

relevant representations are made in the area specified.  This special policy was also reviewed in 
2015 and data from the police, ambulance service and noise complaints assessed.  The conclusions 
were similar to the results of the review of the Fulham Broadway special policy, with a reduction in 
alcohol related crime, anti social behavior and noise complaints after midnight.  A report on crime, 
disorder and noise is attached as Annex 7.  In view of the current positive impact of this special 
policy it will remain in place and will be reviewed regularly. 

 
6.5 The absence of a special policy in other areas does not prevent any Responsible Authority or other 

persons from making representations on the grounds that the premises will give rise to a negative 
cumulative impact in the area in question, on one or more of the four Licensing Objectives (The 
Secretary of State’s Guidance – March 2015). 

 
6.6 Where there is sufficient evidence that another particular area has reached a point where existing 

licensing activity is at such levels that if by granting a licence it would contribute to the negative 
impact in the area, the Licensing Authority may adopt a special policy in relation to that area. 

 
6.7 If any further special policies were adopted they would not be absolute and each application would 

still have to be considered on its own merits. 
 
6.8 In coming to any decision regarding cumulative impact the Licensing Authority will also have regard 

to other mechanisms outside of the licensing regime which may also be available to address this 
issue, these are: 

 
• Planning controls (where development or change of use is involved, or where trading hours are 

limited by planning conditions) 

• Police enforcement of the normal law concerning disorder and anti-social behaviour. 

• Prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such premises who is selling 
alcohol to people who are drunk 

• Prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such premises who is sell to 
underage persons or selling illegal alcohol or tobacco 

• Police powers to close down instantly any licensed premises or temporary events on grounds 
of disorder, the likelihood of disorder or excessive noise emanating from the premises, for up to 
24 hours. 

• The power of the police, other responsible authorities, a local resident, business or Councillor to 
seek a review of the licence or certificate in question. 

• Police and Local Authority power to issue a Closure Notice for up to 48 hours where serious anti-

social behavior is taking place at licensed premises under the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and 

Policing Act 2014. 

 

7 Promotion of other strategies 
 

7.1 The Licensing Authority will monitor the impact of licensing on the provision of regulated 
entertainment, and particularly live music and dancing. Only appropriate, proportionate and 
reasonable licensing conditions will be imposed on such events. The council recognises that as part 
of implementing cultural strategies, account needs to be taken of the need to encourage and 
promote a broad range of entertainment, particularly live music, dancing, street arts and theatre 
for the wider cultural benefit of the community. 

 

Page 49



15 

 

 

7.2 Arrangements have been made for the licensing committee to receive, when appropriate, reports 
on the needs of the local tourist economy. 

 
7.3 The Licensing Authority will keep the licensing committee appraised of the employment situation in 

the area and the need for new investment and employment where appropriate. 
 
7.4 The Licensing Authority will also report to local transport committees with regard to the need to 

disperse people from town centres in order to avoid concentrations of people that can produce 
nuisance and disorder.  The Authority will liaise with Transport for London (TFL) and the Highways 
Department about local transport issues (late night bus and tube services) with regard to the need to 
disperse people from town centres late at night in order to avoid concentrations of people causing 
noise nuisance and possible crime and/or disorder.   

 
7.5 In accordance with it’s functions as a Licensing Authority, section 149 of the  Equalities Act 2010 

obliges public authorities to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination and 
to promote equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different groups. The 
council has an Equal Opportunities Policy and this revised Statement of Licensing Policy will be 
monitored for any adverse impact on the promotion of equal opportunities. 

 
7.6 The council will ensure its various strategies and policies are joined up to achieve the Licensing 

Objectives in the interests of clarity for applicants and effective determination. This will include 
taking into account the following: 

 
• The Environmental Health Service Group’s Enforcement Policy; 

• Crime and Disorder Reduction strategy and strategic assessment; 

• LBHF Alcohol Licensing strategy 

• National Alcohol strategy 

• Community Safety strategy; 

• Equal Opportunities policy; 

• Cultural and Tourism strategies including promotion of live music and community events; 

• Objectives of the Private Security Industry Authority; 

• Responsibilities under the Anti Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014; 
• Home Office Safer Clubbing Guide. See:  

http://www.russellwebster.com/documents/Safer%20Nightlife%20published%20version.pdf 

• Health Act 2006 
• Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006 
• The Government’s Code of Practice on Test Purchasing:  

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/code-of-practice-age-restricted-products 
• Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 

 
 

8 Prevention of crime and disorder 
 

8.1 The Licensing Authority will require applicants to detail in their operating schedule the steps 
proposed to ensure the deterrence and prevention of crime and disorder on, and in the vicinity of, the 
premises, having regard to their location, character, condition, the nature and extent of the proposed 
use and the persons likely to use the premises.  Please refer to Section 15 – Operating Schedule. 

 
8.2 The Licensing Authority will require the licence holder to indicate what steps will be put in place to 

Page 50

http://www.drugs.gov.uk/Reports%3B
http://www.drugs.gov.uk/Reports%3B
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/code-of-practice-age-restricted-products


16 

 

 

control the excessive consumption of alcohol and drunkenness on relevant premises in order to 
reduce the risk of anti social behaviour occurring elsewhere after customers have left the premises. 

 
8.3 The Licensing Authority is aware of the link between the supply of discounted alcohol and incidents 

of alcohol related disorder as well as the impact that excessive consumption of alcohol or binge 
drinking can have on public health and will consider whether any additional measures or 
restrictions can be placed on alcohol sales to prevent binge drinking and promote ‘sensible drinking’. 
( See Annex 1.) 

 
8.4 Whilst there may be evidence that people addicted to alcohol and their families are at risk of 

significant health and social problems such as mental illness, gambling and drug misuse, relationship 
breakdown, criminal activity and financial difficulties, public health is not a licensing objective and 
therefore cannot be taken into account, when deciding on applications. However, the Director of 
Public Health’s team is a Responsible Authority under the Act and as such is able to make 
representations either in their own right or in support of other representations. The Licensing 
Authority will continue to liaise with public health colleagues about new and variation applications 
within the borough, so that we can both continue to monitor any increase in access to alcohol for 
those at risk and work jointly to ensure that appropriate measures are put in place to minimise that 
risk and support those seeking help. 

 
8.5 The  Licensing  Authority  will  use  the  powers  contained  within  the  Act  to  ensure  operators’ 

promotional activities do not undermine the Licensing Objectives.   Where alcoholic drinks are 
heavily or extensively discounted, or there are other forms of promotion such as `two for one’ or 
‘drink all you can’ offers, this is likely to encourage excessive consumption or binge drinking and 
result in alcohol fuelled incidents of crime and disorder and implications for public safety, public 
nuisance and may expose children to risk of harm. (See Annex 1). 

 
8.6 Any premises found to be participating in heavily discounted and irresponsible alcohol drinks 

promotions will be considered as high risk premises for multi-agency compliance and enforcement 
visits.  Operators may also be operating in breach of the mandatory licence condition shown in 
Annex 1.  

 
8.7 Where evidence indicates that drinks promotions at a premises are undermining one or more of the 

licensing objectives, it is likely that a responsible authority will instigate a review of the premises 
licence. 

 
8.8 Off Licences, shops, supermarkets and stores selling alcohol for consumption off the premises 

potentially have a high risk of crime and disorder as well as being targeted as easy premises 
from where to acquire alcohol. Such premises can contribute to anti social behaviour and disorder 
through the consumption of alcohol on the street and in open spaces by groups of drinkers, through 
the sale of alcohol to children, and through the sale of alcohol to street drinkers and persons who 
are already drunk. 

 
8.9 The Licensing Authority expects operators of off licences to show particular diligence in areas 

where these problems are prevalent, and to strictly monitor the way they sell alcohol where the 
premises are located close to schools and hostels and similar premises that provide shelter or 
services to alcohol dependent persons. 

 
8.10 It is important that staff working at off licences are suitably trained and receive appropriate refresher 

training in their responsibilities under the Act and can discharge their duties in full compliance with 

Page 51



17 

 

 

the licence conditions and requirements of the Act. This includes the ability to competently check a 
customer’s age with acceptable forms of identification where necessary. The Licensing Authority will 
particularly consider the following matters where they are material to the individual application: 

 
• The likelihood of any violence, public order or policing problem if the licence is granted; 

• The measures taken to control admission to the premises, and to take reasonable steps to 
prevent the occurrence of crime and disorder and public nuisance immediately outside the 
premises, where and to the extent that these matters are within their control.  

• Past conduct and prior history of complaints against the premises; 
• Whether a dispersal policy has been prepared to minimise the potential for disorder as customers 

leave the premises; and 

• Any relevant representations. 
 

8.11 If there are concerns about illegal drugs, applicants must show that they can comply with the Home 
Office guidance ‘Safer Clubbing’ in relation to the control of illegal drugs on their premises. 
They should agree a protocol with the Licensing Authority and the police on the handling of illegal 
drugs found on their premises. 

 
8.12 Operators should have robust controls in place to avoid the presence of weapons on their 

premises and should agree a protocol with the Licensing Authority and the police on the handling 
of weapons found on their premises. 

 
8.13 Conditions will, so far as possible, reflect local crime prevention strategies, and the Licensing 

Authority will also have regard to the views of the local Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership. 
 
8.14 Police powers to deal with any disorder have been strengthened and they have a key role to play in 

the prevention of crime and disorder on licensed premises. 
 
8.15 The Police and the Licensing Authority will need to work closely together in order to ensure that this 

important objective of the Act is fulfilled by any applicants/operators.  As a result, the Licensing 
Authority and the Police have signed a Memorandum of Understanding. This document provides an 
outline of how the Licensing Authority will liaise, communicate and work to ensure full and proper 
consultation and effective joint working with this key responsible authority. 

 
8.16 It is recommended that applicants discuss the crime prevention procedures in their premises with 

the Licensing Authority and the Police before making a formal application. Licences for any form of 
regulated entertainment will be subject to conditions to prohibit entertainment (including film 
exhibitions) which are likely to lead to disorder or stir up hatred or incite violence towards any 
section of the public on the grounds of colour, race, ethnic or national origin, disability, religious 
beliefs, sexual orientation or gender. 

 
8.17 To assist potential licence applicants the Council now offers a pre-application advice service.  Details 

of this service can be found on the licensing pages of the LBHF website. 
 

 

9 Public safety 
 

9.1 The Licensing Authority will require the applicant to detail in their operating plan the steps proposed 
to ensure the physical safety of people using the relevant premises or place. Please refer to Section 
15 – Operating Schedule 

Page 52



18 

 

 

 
9.2 Maximum occupancy limits will be specified on the licence only where necessary for the promotion 

of public safety or the prevention of disorder. Where a capacity limit is already specified in a fire risk 
assessment, the Licensing Authority will not normally include that limit as a licence condition. 

 
9.3 The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 makes the Fire Authority responsible for fire safety matters in 

licensed premises. This means that any conditions imposed by the Licensing Authority, prior to the Order, that 

relate to any fire safety requirements or prohibitions that are, or could be, imposed by the Order can be 

disregarded. 

9.4 The exception to this will be in cases where the council and the enforcing authority for the fire safety 
order are one and the same body. For example, in designated sports-grounds and stands where the 
council enforce the fire safety order. In such circumstances fire safety conditions should not be set in 
new licences, but conditions in existing licences will remain in force and be enforceable by the 
Licensing Authority. 

 
9.5 Safe capacities will be imposed where necessary for the promotion of public safety or the prevention 

of disorder on the relevant premises. If no safe capacity has been imposed through other legislation, 
a responsible authority may consider it necessary for a new capacity to be attached to the premises 
which would apply at any material time when the licensable activities are taking place and may 
make representations to that effect.  In certain circumstances, capacity limits may be necessary in 
preventing disorder, as overcrowded venues can increase the risks of crowds becoming frustrated 
and hostile.  The types of premises that may be subject to safe capacities will be the following; 

 
• Nightclubs 

• Cinemas 

• Theatres 

• Other premises where regulated entertainment is being provided within the meaning of the Act, e.g. 
open public spaces 

 
9.6 The Licensing Authority will, where appropriate, attach conditions to a licence to ensure public 

safety, dealing with, but not limited to. the following: 

 
• Checks on equipment at specified intervals, e.g. gas safety checks; 

• Standards to be maintained, e.g. temporary electrical installations to comply with British 
Standards; 

• The number of people on the premises to ensure it is appropriate having regard to the activities 
taking place and reliable ways of counting the number; 

• The steps taken to manage the risk from glass, the use of bottle bins, glass collectors and door 
supervisors to prevent glass being taken off the premises; 

• The use of door supervisors to manage the entrance and exit from the premises and to protect 
public safety as customers leave the premises; 

• The provision of air conditioning and ventilation; 

• Measures to protect against overcrowding; and 

• Consideration of the needs of disabled people and appropriate provisions. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 53



19 

 

 

10 The prevention of public nuisance 
 

10.1 The Licensing Authority will require the applicant to demonstrate within the operating plan how they 
intend to prevent nuisance arising, prevent disturbance and protect amenity so far as is appropriate 
to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are met.  Where there is a relevant representation regarding 
extended hours, the Licensing Authority will not permit an extension unless it is satisfied that the 
Licensing Objectives would be met. Please refer to Section 15 – Operating Schedule 

 
10.2 In considering an application, the Licensing Authority will consider the adequacy of proposed 

measures to remove or effectively manage the potential for public nuisance and anti-social behaviour. 
 
10.3 The Licensing Authority will particularly consider the following matters where they are material to the 

individual application: 

 
• One of the most common complaints the Licensing Authority receive is about nuisance 

caused by customers as they leave licensed premises at night. The Licensing Authority 
recommends that primarily alcohol led premises such as nightclubs and pubs, located close to 
any residential premises, implement a dispersal policy at their venue. All relevant staff should 
be trained on any policy, and all reasonable steps should be taken to ensure it is fully 
implemented and adhered to at all times.   

• The proximity of residential accommodation; 

• The type of use proposed, including the likely numbers of customers, proposed hours of 
operation and the frequency of activity; 

• The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent noise and vibration 
escaping from the premises, including music, noise from ventilation equipment, and human 
voices. Such measures may include the installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, 
acoustic lobbies and sound limitation devices; 

• The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent disturbance by 
customers arriving at or leaving the premises. This will usually be of greater importance late at 
night and/or in the early hours of the morning.  However nuisance can arise at any time of the 
day or night so the Licensing Authority will consider representations from Responsible 
Authorities and/or Interested Parties relating to potential nuisance from any activity at all times 
dependant on the merits of the application/steps taken or proposed to prevent nuisance. 

• Limiting the number of people permitted to use a garden/other open-air areas, including those 
for the use of smoking, at any one time. 

• Restricting the use of a garden/other open-air areas, including those for the use of smoking, 
after a particular time e.g. 11:00pm (or such earlier time as may be considered appropriate). 

• The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent queuing (either  by 
pedestrian or vehicular traffic). If some queuing is inevitable then queues should be 
diverted away from neighbouring premises or be otherwise managed to prevent disturbance  
or obstruction; 

• The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to ensure staff leave the premises 
quietly; 

• The arrangements made or proposed for parking by patrons, and the effect of parking by 
patrons on local residents; 

• The provision for public transport in the locality (including taxis and private hire vehicles) 
for patrons; 

• The level of likely disturbance from associated vehicular and pedestrian movement to and 
from the premises; 

Page 54



20 

 

 

• The delivery and collection areas and delivery/collection times; 

• The siting of external lighting, including security lighting that is installed inappropriately; 

• The arrangements for refuse disposal, storage and the prevention/tidying of litter (including 
fly posters and illegal placards); 

• The history of previous nuisance complaints proved against the premises,   particularly 
where statutory notices have been served on the present licence holder; 

• The history of the applicant in controlling anti-social behaviour and preventing nuisance; 

• The generation of odour, e.g. from the preparation of food; 

• Any other relevant activity likely to give rise to nuisance; 

• Any representations made by the Police, or other relevant agency or representative; 

 

 

11 Protection of children from harm 
 

11.1 The Licensing Authority will require operating plans to specify the measures and management 
controls in place to protect children from harm. Where appropriate a written childcare policy should 
be available and be incorporated in the induction of staff. Please refer to Section 15 – Operating 
Schedule 

 
11.2 The legislation recognises the right of licence holders (serving alcohol) to allow accompanied 

children into their premises at any time. The Licensing Authority will not normally seek to limit their 
access (above that specified in the Act) to any premises unless it is necessary for the prevention of 
physical, moral or psychological harm, or where there are concerns about child sexual exploitation. 
Where this is considered likely, upon consideration of a relevant representation, conditions will be 
imposed that restrict children from entering all or part of licensed premises: 

 
• At certain times of the day; 

• When certain licensable activities are taking place; 

• Under certain ages, e.g. 16 or 18; 

• Unless accompanied by an adult. 
 
11.3 The Licensing Authority will particularly consider whether: 

 
• There is entertainment or services of an adult nature commonly provided; 

• There have been convictions, Penalty Notices for Disorder (PND) or cautions for serving 
alcohol to minors or premises with a reputation for under-age drinking; 

• There is a known association with drug taking or dealing; 

• There is a significant element of gambling on the premises; 

• There is a presumption that children under 18 should not be allowed (e.g. to nightclubs, except 
when under 18 discos are being held); 

• There are licensable activities that are likely to appeal to minors/children under 16 taking place 
during times when children under 16 may be expected to be attending compulsory full-time 
education; 

• There have been representations from police, the Local Safeguarding Children Board, Trading 
Standards or other relevant agency or representative. 

• There are measures/training for staff on how to deal with suspected truanting school children on 
the premises and how to recognize signs of potential child sexual exploitation. 

Page 55



21 

 

 

 
11.4 The sale of alcohol to a minor is a criminal offence and Trading Standards officers will conduct 

appropriate covert test purchasing exercises and will take account of any complaints and 
intelligence. The Act permits the use of children under the age of 18 to undertake test purchases 
when they have been directed to do so by a duly authorised officer. 

 
11.5 Where a sale of alcohol has been made on the same premises to a minor on two or more different 

occasions within a period of three months the premises licence could be suspended for a defined 
period. 

 
11.6 Where there are restrictions (whether imposed by statute or by the Licensing Authority) on the sale 

or supply of goods or the provision of services or the showing of films or other entertainment to 
children below a certain age, then the licensee will be required to demonstrate that they have in 
place a system for verifying the age of the children intended to be supplied with such goods, 
services or entertainment. Training should be given to all persons who might be in a position to 
serve or refuse such children. The training should include a basic understanding of the law, seeking 
proof of age, verifying the authenticity of proof of age cards and handling and recording refusals. 
(See Annex 1). 

 
11.7 Conditions may be imposed on licences for premises where children will be present at places of 

public entertainment to the effect that a sufficient number of adults must be present to control the 
access and egress (including safe transport home) and to ensure their safety.  What is deemed 
sufficient will depend on the circumstances of the particular event. 

 
11.8 The Licensing Authority will expect operating plans to specify the measures and management 

controls in place to prevent alcohol being served to children, other than in those limited 
circumstances permitted by the Act. (See Annex 1.)  The Council’s Trading Standards officers have a 
role to play in the protection of children from harm, and proof of age schemes, and are able to 
provide advice in relation to measures that can be taken to help prevent the sale of alcohol to 
underage children.  Potential licence holders should also be aware of the Proof of Age London (PAL) 
Scheme hosted by Southwark Council. 

 
11.9 The Licensing Authority commends the Portman Group Code of Practice 

(http://www.portmangroup.org.uk/codes/alcohol-marketing/code-of-practice ) on the naming, packaging 
and promotion of alcoholic drinks to ensure that drinks are packaged and promoted in a socially 
responsible manner and only to those who are 18 years or older. The Licensing Authority 
recommends that the applicant refer to the Retailer Alert Bulletin by which the Portman Group tells 
licensed retailers which products have been found to be in breach of the code and should be 
removed from sale. 

 
11.10 There may be occasions where a display of film is required and needs to be classified by the 

Licensing Authority or the need for a classification needs to be waived.  In this case applicants must 
apply to the Licensing Authority for this to be carried out. 

 
11.11 Nothing in the above interferes with the right of a licence holder to preclude children from their 

premises. Conditions requiring the admission of children to premises cannot be attached to licences. 
 
11.12 The ‘Responsible Authority’ in relation to the protection of children from harm is the council’s Local 

Safeguarding Children Board and in particular the Head of  Safeguard ing,  Review and 
Qual i ty Assurance.   The Trading Standards service will also have certain responsibilities 

Page 56

http://www.portmangroup.org.uk/codes/alcohol-marketing/code-of-practice


22 

 

 

particularly in relation to the underage sales of age restricted products and providing advice about 
measures that can be taken to reduce the risk of alcohol sales to under eighteens. 

 
 

 

12 Premises licences 
 
12.1 An application for a premises licence must be made in the prescribed form to this Licensing  

Authority. The application must be accompanied by: 

 
• The required fee; 

• An operating schedule; 

• A plan of the premises in a prescribed form; 

• If the application involves the supply of alcohol, a form of consent from the individual who is to be 
specified in the licence as the designated premises supervisor. This person will normally have 
been given day to day responsibility for running the premises by the premises licence holder. 

 

An application for the new grant of a premises licence will be subject to a 28 day consultation period 
and a notice of the application must be displayed at the premises location. 

 

This Authority will also expect applicants for new grants of, and variations to, premises licences to 
submit a Local Area Risk Assessment with their application. 

 
12.2 Please note that there is also an annual fee for a premises licence which is payable  on the 

anniversary of the granting of the application. Non-payment of this fee will be treated by the 
Licensing Authority as a serious matter and could result in the suspension of the licence. 

 

12.3 The Licensing Authority will proactively monitor licensable activity within the borough and carry out a 
program of risk based inspections in accordance with the ‘Regulators Code’.  Only those premises 
identified as being ‘high risk’ premises will be routinely inspected. Officers will only visit premises 
where there is a reason to do so, e.g. as part of a complaint investigation.  

 
12.4 As already mentioned in paragraph 8.17, to assist potential licence applicants the Council now offers 

a pre-application advice service.  Details of this service can be found on the licensing pages of the 
LBHF website. 

 

   

13 Variations to existing premise licences 
 

13.1 Where a premises licence requires a material change to the licence a variation application should be 
submitted by the premises licence holder . This would include an increase in the capacity of the 
premises, a change in the hours of operation of the premises, a change to the way the premises is 
to operate in regard to the operating schedule or a request to vary an existing condition attached to 
the licence. The procedure is similar to the process for a new application, in that it will require a 28 
day consultation period and a site notice to be displayed. 

 
13.2 The Licensing Act was amended to include the ability of premises licence and certificate holders to 

apply to vary their existing licence by way of a minor variation. 
 

Page 57



23 

 

 

13.3 A minor variation application may not be used to vary the licence to: 

 
• vary substantially the structure or layout of the premises 
• vary the Designated Premise Supervisor 
• authorise the sale by retail of alcohol 
• authorise the supply of alcohol at any time between 11 pm and 7 am 
• authorise an increase in the amount of time on any day during which alcohol may be sold by 

retail 
 
13.4 There are 4 main types of variation suitable for the minor variation application: 

 
• Minor changes to the structure or layout of a premises 
• Small adjustments to licensing hours (except for the sale/supply of alcohol) 
• Removal of out of date, irrelevant or unenforceable conditions and the addition of 

volunteered conditions 
• Licensable activities: adding/removing certain licensable activities, including live music 

 
13.5 Applications are made to the Licensing Authority on prescribed forms. The application must be 

advertised on a white A4 notice at the premises, and contain basic details such as a brief 
description of the proposed variation; name of the applicant or club; address of the premises; and 
date by which any other persons may make representations.  There is no requirement for the 
applicant to advertise the application in a local newspaper. Applicants can volunteer conditions as 
part of the minor variations process, whether from their own risk assessment of the variation, or from 
informal discussions with the responsible authorities or the Licensing Authority. 

 
13.6 There are no hearings under the minor variation process.  The application will be determined by 

licensing officers under the Delegated Authority powers of the Council. 
 
13.7 There is no requirement for applicants to notify responsible authorities of their application. 

Responsible authorities only become involved at the request of the licensing officer.  The guidance 
states that licensing officers ‘must consult relevant responsible authorities (whether the application is 
made in writing or electronically) if there is any doubt about the impact of the variation on the licensing 
objectives and they need specialist advice, and take their views into account in reaching a decision.’    

 
13.8 Other persons may make representations based on the Licensing Objectives.  Representations do 

not trigger a hearing under the minor variations process, but the guidance states that licensing 
authorities must take any representations into account in arriving at a decision. 

 
13.9 The timescale set out in the legislation is 15 working days. Day one is the first working day after the 

day the Licensing Authority receives the application. The Licensing Authority must then process the 
application and determine it within 15 working days. 

 
13.10 If the Licensing Authority fails to determine the application within 15 working days, the application is 

deemed refused, and the fee must be returned to the applicant. 
 
13.11 The first 10 working days of the 15 working day period constitute a consultation period in which 

other persons may make representations to the Licensing Authority. During this period officers may 
consider the application and may consult relevant responsible authorities. A determination of the 
application cannot be made during the 10 working day period; a decision on the application must be 

Page 58



24 

 

 

made during the remaining 5 working days. 
 
13.12 The key test by the Licensing Authority is whether the proposed variation could impact adversely on 

any of the four Licensing Objectives.  Licensing officers have no power to impose conditions; only 
conditions volunteered by the applicant can be added to the licence under the minor variations 
procedure. The determination must be to grant or to refuse an application. There are notice 
requirements following determined applications. 

 
13.13 Granted applications: the Licensing Authority must notify the applicant of any variation granted, 

together with the time that the variation will take effect. This will usually be as stipulated in the 
application, but if the applicant stipulates a date before the notice of determination is given, the 
Licensing Authority will specify a later time in the notice.  Licences and summaries will be re-issued 
on the grant of a minor variation to reflect the changes made. 

 
13.14 Refused applications: the Licensing Authority must give notice to the applicant that the application 

has been refused, together with the reasons for the refusal.  Applications that have been rejected 
under the minor variations process can then be the subject of a full variation application or of a 
revised minor variations application.  The minor variations refusal does not affect any subsequent 
variation application in respect of the same premises.   

 

14 Planning Permission 
 
14.1 The local planning authority exercises its powers to control opening times of all new establishments 

seeking planning permission, where harm would otherwise arise.  A link to the Planning Departments 
web pages is below: 
 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Environment_and_Planning/Planning/homepage.asp 

 
14.2 Licensing applications will not be a re-run of the planning application. The granting by the licensing 

committee of any variation of a licence which involves a material alteration to a building would not 
relieve the applicant of the need to apply for planning permission, or building regulation control, where 
appropriate. 

 
14.3 Where an applicant is granted a premises licence with operating hours that are different to the hours 

permitted by the premises planning permission, the applicant must observe the earlier closing time. 
Premises operating in breach of their planning permission would be liable to prosecution under 
planning law. 

 
14.4 The council's Planning Policies are currently set out in its Core Strategy and subsequently in the 

Local Development Framework, supplemented by additional guidance on A3 use of restaurants 
and cafés, A4 use of public houses and A5 use for take-aways.   Additional policies are set out 
in the London Plan, which is also part of the statutory development plan for the borough. For further 
information contact the Planning Division on 020 8753 1081 or 020 8753 1084. 

 
14.5 The strength of these policies is that there is an obligation both on the council, as the local planning 

authority, and the decision maker on any appeal, to give considerable weight to them. This helps to 
ensure consistency in the decision making process. 

 
14.6 In general, planning permissions authorise the development or change of use of land and buildings 

Page 59

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Environment_and_Planning/Planning/homepage.asp


25 

 

 

in the public interest. Licences relate to the specific circumstances and proposed licensable activity 
within a particular premises, and may cover only a part of the premises. 

 
14.7 In many cases where an application is made for a new licence or variation, the town planning use 

will already be authorised by a previous planning permission or because the premises has a long- 
standing lawful use. Therefore, a new application for planning permission is often not required. 
However, the existing planning permission might, and if recently granted it is very likely to, have 
conditions restricting the use of the premises in some way: e.g. the hours of operation. In that case, 
anybody seeking a licence to operate beyond those hours would also need to seek and obtain the 
revised planning permission or a variation or removal of the relevant planning condition. 

 
14.8 The Licensing Authority may refuse to grant a licence if a representation from the Planning 

Department has been received and: 

 
 One or more of the licensing objectives would not be promoted 

 
14.9  The Licensing Act states that any authorisation for the supply of alcohol in relation to a petrol station 

will have no effect if the premise is used primarily as a garage. It is for the Licensing Authority to 
decide in the light of the facts whether or not any premises is used primarily as a garage.   The 
Licensing Authority will establish primary use based on an examination of the intensity of use by 
customers of the premises and not based on an examination of gross or net turnover. 

 
14.10 All applicants are encouraged to obtain the correct planning permission. Further information and 

advice can be obtained from the Planning Portal at http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/, where 
applicants can also download an application form.  In order for applications to be carefully 
considered it is useful to include a description of the current use of the premises and whether there 
will be a change of use, e.g. it is currently being used as a take-away and will be changing to a 
restaurant. Please note that operating a licence without the relevant planning permission could be a 
breach of planning control and could leave licence holders vulnerable to enforcement action. 

 

15 Operating schedules 
 
15.1 Operating schedules for premises licences are the key to ensuring compliance with the four 

Licensing Objectives. The measures proposed in the operating schedule will normally be converted 
into conditions to be attached to the premises licence and should therefore fulfil the following criteria: 
 

i) Be precise and enforceable 

ii) Be unambiguous 

iii) Not duplicate other statutory provisions 
 

iv) Be clear in what they intend to achieve, and 

v) Be appropriate, proportionate and justifiable 

 
15.2 Prospective holders of new premises licences, and those seeking variations to existing premises 

licences, are advised to consult with the Licensing Authority and the various responsible authorities 
at the earliest possible stage in order to reduce the risk of any dispute arising. 

Page 60

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/


26 

 

 

 
15.3 The Licensing Authority will seek to impose conditions appropriate to promote the Licensing 

Objectives. For those premises, which present the lowest risk to public safety and the other 
Licensing Objectives, the Licensing Authority will adopt a light touch approach to regulation. 

 
15.4 Operators of licensed premises will have to comply with planning, environmental health, trading 

standards, fire safety, licensing and building control legislation when opening or adapting licensed 
premises. The Licensing Authority will seek to avoid confusion and duplication by not imposing 
licence conditions relating to matters that are required or controllable under other legislation, except 
where they can be exceptionally justified to promote the Licensing Objectives. 

 
15.5 During the course of its inspections, the Licensing Authority may refer matters to any other agency 

where there appears to be a contravention of the legislation enforced by that agency. 
 
15.6 OPERATING SCHEDULE CONSIDERATIONS 
 

The Licensing Authority considers that it would be beneficial if operating schedules include all the 
following: 

 

 

GENERAL 
 

• a description of the style and character of the business to be conducted on the premises (for 
example, a supermarket, or a cinema with 6 screens and a bar, or a restaurant, or a public house 
with two bars, a dining area and a garden open to customers); 

 
• A description of the local area and physical environment including crime and disorder hotspots, 

proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may congregate; 

 
• Where specific policies apply in the area (for example, a cumulative impact policy), applicants 

are also expected to demonstrate an understanding of how the policy impacts on their 
application; any measures they will take to mitigate the impact; and why they consider the 
application should be an exception to the policy. 

 

• the licensable activities to be conducted on the premises; 
 

• the times during which it is proposed that the relevant licensable activities are to take place. This 
should include the time the premises will be open, the time the last customer will be able to enter 
the premises, the time the last drink will be served and the time all customers will have left the 
premises. Detail should also be provided on how this will be managed/controlled; 

 

• Any other times when the premises are to be open to the public; 
 

• Where the licence is required only for a limited period, that period; 
 

• Where appropriate, details of the accessibility of the premises for disabled people. The Licensing 
Authority will take the current version of the publication “Technical Standards for Places of 
Entertainment” into account when considering applications for new premises providing 
entertainment and existing premises where entertainment is provided and refurbishment works 
are carried out. These standards cover accessibility for disabled people, such as adequate 
access and means of escape, audible and visible means of communication, toilet facilities, etc; 

 
 
 

Page 61



27 

 

 

LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 
 

Where the licensable activities include the supply of alcohol: 
 

• the name and address of an individual who must hold a valid personal licence to be specified as 
the designated premises supervisor and be responsible on a day-to-day basis for conducting 
business in the premises in a manner consistent with the terms and conditions of the licence, in 
accordance with the Act and in pursuit of the Licensing Objectives; except in some Community 
Premises (see Designated Premises Supervisors in Community Premises at section 19) 

• whether the alcohol will be supplied for consumption on or off the premises or both; 
• details of what seating arrangements will be provided and where; 
• When completing operating schedules and in their management of premises, applicants should 

consider guidance documents on the responsible promotion of alcohol and on binge drinking, 
such as the British Beer and Pub Association’s document – Point of Sales Promotion Standards 
for the Management of Responsible Drinks Promotions including happy hours, which is also 
available via the www.beerandpub.com website. Refer to Annex 2. 

 
For sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises – applicants in respect of off licences and 
other premises selling alcohol for consumption off the premises may need to consider whether: 

 
• there are shutters to prevent alcohol from being selected in non-licensed periods. 
• there are appropriate numbers of staff on duty to deal with possible ‘intimidation’ to sell alcohol. 
• there are restrictions required on the sale of low price, high strength alcohol and drink promotions. 
• an incident log book is available to record incidents. 
• there are measures in place necessary to prevent underage sales. (See 

Annex 2) 

• there are measures in  p lace  necessary to prevent alcohol from being sold outside permitted 
hours where the operating hours of the premises exceed those for the sale of alcohol. 

• there are procedures in place to prevent sales of alcohol to intoxicated persons (with particular 
attention to street drinkers) or individuals leaving premises in the vicinity such as a late night bar; 
where there is evidence to suggest this is a problem the Licensing Authority may require a 
temporary cessation of alcohol sales during high risk times. 

 
Where the licensable activities include dance: 

 
• a description of the type of dancing in broad terms, such as if dancing will be done by 

professionals or if it will be for members of the public, where it will take place on the premises, if 
the dancing involves striptease or lap dancing. 

 
15.7 LOCAL AREA RISK ASSESSMENTS 

 
The Secretary of State’s Guidance states that ‘‘Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain 

sufficient information to enable them to demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose 

to take to promote the licensing objectives, that they understand: 

• the layout of the local area and physical environment including: 
• crime and disorder hotspots,  

• proximity to residential premises, and 
• proximity to areas where children may congregate; 

• any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and 

Page 62

http://www.beerandpub.com/


28 

 

 

• any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary schemes 
including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other schemes) which may 
help to mitigate potential risks.’ 

Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they will 
manage any potential risks.’ 
 

The Guidance goes on to state that ‘Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with 
sufficient information in this section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are 

appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based 
on providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants are 
expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the premises.’ 

This Authority notes the contents of these paragraphs from the Secretary of State’s Guidance 
and, in particular, the use of the word ‘expected’.  Licence applications that do not in any way 

address the contents of these paragraphs in their operating schedules may be returned to the 
applicant as ‘incomplete’. 

 
LICENSING OBJECTIVES 

 
15.8 The Licensing Authority will robustly examine any application and its operating schedule to ensure 

premises do not impact negatively in the community measuring against the four Licensing 
Objectives. The Licensing Authority will consider the steps which the applicant proposes to take to 
promote the Objectives. The Licensing Authority will use further conditions where they are not 
satisfied an operating schedule is sufficient to control these potential issues. The following provides 
a non-exhaustive list of measures/issues that the Licensing Authority considers may be relevant to 
licence applications: 

 
The prevention of crime and disorder 

 
15.9 The following provides a non-exhaustive list of risks associated with the crime and disorder objective 

that applicants may want to consider when preparing their Operating Schedule: 

 
• Crime and disorder in the vicinity of the premises: this may include the crime and disorder risks 

arising from persons queuing to enter the premises; persons exiting the premises and customers 
smoking eating or drinking in outdoor areas and on the highway outside the premises. This can 
also include crime arising from pickpockets and bag snatchers, particularly in open spaces or 
crowded areas where alcohol is being consumed. 

• alternative to glass bottles and glasses - restricting the use of glass bottles and beer glasses 
to customers in preference for containers made from polycarbonate materials. 

• CCTV - using CCTV inside and/or outside the premises together with appropriate procedures 
and having staff properly trained to use CCTV equipment. 

• dispersal procedures - establishing appropriate dispersal procedures to minimise the potential 
for crime and disorder when customers are leaving the premises. 

• dealing with and reporting crime and disorder - training for staff and door security aimed at 
reducing crime and disorder in the premises and its vicinity and dealing with and reporting 
incidents if they occur. 

• door staff - considering whether the premises employs a sufficient number of SIA registered 
door staff, whether Door Premises Supervisors check the legitimacy of the badges and whether 
SIA staff display their badges prominently. (Note: All door supervisors must be Security Industry 

Page 63



29 

 

 

Authority (SIA) registered - See Annex 1.) 
• drugs and weapons - ensuring compliance with relevant guidance regarding illegal drugs and 

weapons. Attention should be paid to search procedures, procedures for the safe storage and 
surrender of seized drugs and weapons and drug awareness issues, designing out the ability to 
take drugs in the premises, etc. 

• excessive drinking - training for staff to recognise when customers are becoming drunk and 
adopting appropriate ‘cut off’ procedures for drunken customers, so as to reduce the likelihood of 
fights or aggressive behaviour. 

• local schemes – joining and attending local Pubwatch meetings and  participating in  the 
Behave or Be Banned Scheme (BOBB) and/or signing up and using the Council’s Safety Net 
Radio scheme. 

• prevention of theft - using bag hooks and signage to warn customers of pickpockets and bag 
snatchers. 

• Event type - in some cases the type of regulated entertainment proposed could attract elements 
which increase the possibility of violence and/or disorder occurring in, or in the vicinity of, the 
premises. For example, some externally promoted live music events carry an increased risk of 
violent crime and disorder. It may be appropriate to carry out a risk assessment of the activities 
proposed and, in some cases, to provide such risk assessment to the Police Licensing Team at 
Fulham Police (fhlicensing@met.police.uk) and/or the Central Licensing Team of the Metropolitan 
Police (TP-C&S-LicensingTeam@met.police.uk) before the event is agreed.  Where a large 
outdoor event is planned this Authority and the Police recommend that the organisers consult 
with ‘relevant parties’ as early in the planning stages as possible.  ‘Relevant parties’ would 
include local residents, local businesses, schools, charitable organisations, responsible 
authorities and relevant local authority departments.  Consideration of timing of events should be 
given in relation to football matches and other large pre-planned annual events within the locality 
and surrounding boroughs. 

 
Applicants are advised to consider the following two paragraphs from the March 2015 edition of the 
Secretary of State’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities: 
 
‘11.27 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises which 

should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed premises:  

• for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 and the 

laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime; 

• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms; 

• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which does 

considerable damage to the industries affected; 

• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; 

• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children; 

• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs; • for the organisation of 

racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks; 

• for knowingly employing a person who is unlawfully in the UK or who cannot lawfully be employed 

Page 64

mailto:TP-C&S-LicensingTeam@met.police.uk


30 

 

 

as a result of a condition on that person’s leave to enter; 

• for unlawful gambling; and 

• for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.  

 

11.28 It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police and other law enforcement agencies, which 

are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and 

crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective 

is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation 

of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously considered.’ 

In relation to smuggled alcohol and tobacco the Trading Standards Team have proposed some 
conditions, that will be added to the Council’s ‘Pool of Conditions’, that may be added to licences 
where the quantity of illegal alcohol and/or tobacco is small and the risk of re-offending is low. 

 
15.10 Public safety 

 
 The following provides a non-exhaustive list of risks associated with the public safety objective that 

applicants may want to consider when preparing their Operating Schedule: 
 
 

• special effects - whether music and dance venues and performance venues will use equipment 
or special effects, e.g. moving equipment, vehicles, pyrotechnics, strobe lights, smoke machines, 
etc. 

• incident and occurrence book – keeping an incident book on the premises so staff can record 
any instances of crime, disorder, refused sales, ejections and intimidating behaviour. 

• risks associated with special promotions/events – ensuring compliance with guidance from 
the Metropolitan Police relating to specific event risk assessments for externally promoted live 
music events well in advance of the event. Risk assessment forms can be obtained from the 
Metropolitan Police Licensing Officer. 

• getting home safely - providing information to customers and staff (including contact telephone 
numbers) regarding safer options available for travelling home late at night - including night buses, 
licensed taxis and private hire (mini-cabs). 

• overcrowding - developing policies and procedures regarding capacity to prevent overcrowding 
and patrons possibly becoming aggressive. 

• premises environment - applicants should consider the physical environment of the premises 
and have regard to issues that could increase the likelihood of patrons becoming agitated or 
aggressive. This may include procedures regarding door supervision, identification and 
management of drunken customers and issues of overcrowding and capacity, which may result in 
patrons becoming aggressive or rowdy. 

 

15.11 The prevention of public nuisance 
 

The following provides a non-exhaustive list of risks associated with the public nuisance objective 
that applicants may want to consider when preparing their Operating Schedule: 

 
• Deliveries/collections – noise from deliveries to and/or collections (e.g. refuse) from the 

Page 65



31 

 

 

premises are another common source of complaint.  Consider the times of such 
deliveries/collections and make sure you specify to any contractors that deliveries/collections 
should not be made at anti-social times.  As a guide, the Noise and Nuisance Service 
recommend that deliveries/collections should only be made between the hours of 7:30am 
and 9:00pm, depending on the proximity of residential and/or other noise-sensitive properties. 

• Drink promotions – adopting policies to discourage excessive drinking such as happy hours, buy 
one get one free, etc. See Annex 2. 

• Late night refreshment - applicants in respect of late night takeaways should demonstrate that 
they have assessed the risk of persons congregating in large numbers in the vicinity of their 
premises. Where appropriate, applicants should demonstrate suitable measures to address this 
problem. 

• Light pollution – this is an increasingly common source of complaint, particularly from illuminated 
signs and external security lighting.  Where provided, illuminated signs should not cause glare to 
neighbouring properties, ideally being turned off at night, and external lighting should be angled 
and/or diffused to also prevent nuisance. 

• Noise and/or vibration breakout from the provision of regulated entertainment, particularly 
from (but not limited to) live music – consider what type of entertainment is to be provided, in 
what room/area of the premises and the suitability of the construction of this room/area to contain 
sound.  Windows are a particular weak-point for noise break-out so consider providing regulated 
entertainment in a room without windows or with as few windows as possible, particularly windows 
that face towards nearby residential properties.  Where suitable, install a lobby to prevent spillage 
of noise each time an entrance/exit door is opened. 

• External Areas – External areas such as gardens can be the source of noise disturbance to 
surrounding premises.  Consider limiting the use of the garden to a reasonable time and number 
of people. 

• Odour – odour from cooking is a common source of complaint, particularly from restaurants and 
fast-food takeaways.  The Council’s Noise and Nuisance Service may therefore require evidence 
that the kitchen ventilation and/or extract systems are regularly maintained and serviced to 
ensure that it is operating efficiently and with minimal nuisance to neighbours arising from 
odour and also noise. This includes the siting of BBQs.   

• Queue management - establishing appropriate procedures to avoid the need for customers to 
queue before entering the premises or, where queuing cannot be avoided, to manage queues so 
as to minimise the potential for crime and disorder or public nuisance by customers who are 
queuing. 

• Ventilation – where regulated entertainment is to be provided there may be a requirement to 
keep doors and/or windows closed during its provision to limit noise breakout, consider therefore 
the provision of air conditioning for the comfort of your customers if doors and windows have to be 
closed during the summer.  However, also note air conditioning can be the source of noise 
complaints in itself, so careful consideration also needs to be given to the siting of this equipment. 

• Waste – consider how and where waste will be stored/disposed of at the end of trading hours, 
particularly if trading until late at night.  This is important because the disposal of glass and/or 
cans to outside bin areas can be very noisy and give rise to complaints, so it may be necessary to 
store such items and other non-degradable refuse inside the premises until the next trading day. 
Consideration should also be given to the time of deliveries to minimize disruption to local 
residents. 

•  Litter – for example, litter patrols for late night take-away premises 
 

Commercial waste can also be taken directly to one of the council's approved waste transfer sites. 
Alternatively there are several licensed waste carriers operating within the Borough, which are 
listed on the council website. 

Page 66



32 

 

 

 
If you do not have a commercial waste agreement the Council offers a flexible service that allows 
businesses to increase or decrease their collection service every three months and the contract 
can be revised by calling the trade waste team on 020 8753 3021, or alternatively email them on 
tradewasteemails@lbhf.gov.uk. 

 
15.12 The protection of children from harm 

 
 The following provides a non-exhaustive list of risks associated with the protection of children from 

harm objective that applicants may want to consider when preparing their Operating Schedule: 

 
• Where premises are subject to age-restrictions, the procedures in place to conduct age 

verification checks. See Annex 1. The Council will expect premises only to accept current 
passports, driving licences or documents bearing the national PASS logo, such as 
Citizencard. The Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) is the UK's national guarantee 
scheme for proof-of- age cards as endorsed by the Home Office. More information can be 
found on   http://www.pass-scheme.org.uk/ 

• Where an application has not indicated any adult entertainment a voluntary condition that 
no nudity or adult entertainment will take place at the premises. 

 

 

16 Consultation 
 
16.1 The applicant will be expected to advertise the application in accordance with the Regulations made 

under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
16.2 The Licensing Authority will carry out a consultation process in accordance with the Regulations 

made under the Licensing Act 2003. In exceptional circumstances the Licensing Authority may 
consider it appropriate to carry out a more extensive form of public consultation. The Licensing 
Authority will publicise details of applications received. 

 
16.3 In order to give residents a fair chance to learn about new applications we have set up an email alert 

system on the Council website.  This will enable residents and other persons to make 
representations to the Licensing Authority if they wish to do so.  The link to set up an account with 
this system is below: 

  

https://www.apps1.lbhf.gov.uk/myaccount/PublicPages/iCaseWorkLogin.aspx?redirect=https%3A%2

F%2Fwww.apps3.lbhf.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.sub%3Fauth%3D0&anonymous=&context= 

 

17 Applications for Personal Licences 
 
17.1 In order to obtain a personal licence the requirements are that the applicant must: 

 
• Be aged 18 or over; 

• Possess a licensing qualification accredited by the Secretary of State; 

• Not have forfeited a personal licence within five years of his or her application; 

• Produce a Criminal Record Bureau certificate; 

• Not have an objection notice from the police about the grant of a personal licence following 

Page 67

mailto:tradewasteemails@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.pass-scheme.org.uk/
https://www.apps1.lbhf.gov.uk/myaccount/PublicPages/iCaseWorkLogin.aspx?redirect=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.apps3.lbhf.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.sub%3Fauth%3D0&anonymous=&context
https://www.apps1.lbhf.gov.uk/myaccount/PublicPages/iCaseWorkLogin.aspx?redirect=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.apps3.lbhf.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.sub%3Fauth%3D0&anonymous=&context


33 

 

 

notification of any unspent relevant offence or foreign offence; or must show that that such an 
offence should not lead to refusal on crime prevention grounds; 

• Pay the appropriate fee to the council. 
 

17.2 The Licensing Act requires that applicants submit two passport size photographs with their 
application.  One of the photographs must be endorsed, with a statement verifying the likeness of the 
photograph to the applicant, by a solicitor, a notary, a person of standing in the community (i.e.: a bank or 
building society official, police officer, civil servant or a minister of religion) or any individual with a 

professional qualification. This Licensing Authority asks that the other photograph submitted is clearly 
endorsed on the reverse side with the person’s name, date of birth and contact number in order to 
ensure the application is correctly processed. 

 
17.3 Applicants with unspent criminal convictions for relevant offences as set out under Schedule  4  

o f  the Act are strongly encouraged to first discuss their intended application with the police and the 
Licensing Authority before making an application. 

 
17.4 A personal licence is valid indefinately unless otherwise revoked or surrendered. A designated 

premises supervisor must hold a personal licence. 

 
18 Temporary Event Notices (TENs) and Other Events 

 
18.1 The Licensing Act 2003 provides for certain occasions when small scale events (no more than 499 

people at a time and lasting for no more than 168 hours) do not need a licence providing a 
minimum of 10 working days notice is given to the police and the Licensing Authority. The annual 
allowance covered by a Temporary Event Notice in relation to a single premises is 21 days. The 
Police and the Council’s Noise and Nuisance Service can object to Temporary Event Notices if the 
event is likely to undermine the licensing objectives. 

 
18.2 Section 193 of the Act defines “working day” as any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday, Christmas 

Day, Good Friday, or a day which is a bank holiday under the Banking and Financial Dealings Act 
1971 in England and Wales. “Ten working days” notice means ten working days exclusive of the day 
on which the event is to start, and exclusive of the day on which the notice is given. 

 
18.3 Where Police or Environmental Protection submit an objection to the Notice the licensing authority 

will hold a hearing to consider the objection. 
 

Licensing Authorities may apply existing licence conditions to a Temporary Event Notice if there are 
objections from the Police or the Council’s Noise and Nuisance Service, where those objections are 
not withdrawn and provided that the conditions would not be inconsistent with the carrying out of the 
licensable activities under the temporary event notice. 

 
18.4 The Licensing Authority will consider whether the limitations set down by the Act in terms of numbers 

and duration of events and capacities are being observed. 
 
18.5 It is recommended in general that the Licensing Authority and police be given at least 28 calendar 

days notice of any event to allow them to help organisers plan their events safely. 

18.6 Organisers of temporary events are strongly advised to contact the Licensing Authority, the Noise 
and Nuisance Service and the Police for advice at the earliest opportunity when planning events, to 

Page 68



34 

 

 

avoid any unnecessary objections being made that may arise from misunderstandings or confusion 
as to what is being proposed. 

 
18.7 The Licensing Act 2003 allows event organisers to submit up to 10 “late notices” per year if they 

hold a personal licence and 2 “late notices” if they do not hold a personal licence. These “late 
notices” can be submitted to the Licensing Authority, Police and Environmental Protection between 
5 and 9 days before the event. It should be noted that if either the Police or the Council’s Noise 
and Nuisance Service submits an objection to a late notice the Council will issue a counter notice 
prohibiting licensable activities for the duration of the TEN.  Applications may be made online from 
the licensing pages of the LBHF website. 

 
LARGE OUTDOOR EVENTS 

 
18.8 Public safety and the prevention of public nuisance at large outdoor events is of paramount 

importance to the Licensing Authority. Applications for large events that are normally temporary in 
nature may not be suitable for licensing under the TENs process. Events will be licensed under a 
time limited Premises Licence lasting for the duration of the event.  Applicants are encouraged to 
make applications for a new Premise Licence and should therefore ensure that they apply in good 
time.  Applicants are recommended to speak to the relevant Responsible Authorities, and in 
particular, the Police at the preliminary considerations stage of planning large events.  This could be 
as much as 18 months or two years prior to the event taking place, dependent on the type and size 
of event proposed.  Applicants are also recommended to contact the Council’s Events Team on 020 

8753 2135 or by email at: events@lbhf.gov.uk.  The Council’s locally produced ‘Events Guide’ can be found 
on the LBHF website. 

 
18.9 Applicants for such events must consider “The Event Safety Guide”, published by the Health and 

Safety Executive, on all aspects of arranging and staging events. 
 
18.10 Applications for large temporary events may be scrutinised by a Safety Advisory Group (SAG) as 

well as the licensing committee. The SAG will consist of officers from Responsible Authorities such 
as the Police, Environmental Protection, Commercial Services Team, Fire  Authority, and  may 
include officers from other relevant departments and agencies such as the London Ambulance 
Service, Transport for London (TFL) and Highways. 

 
18.11 The Safety Advisory Group allows officers to question applicants about the operation of their event 

to ensure it will be a “safe” event, and will minimise disruption to traffic management and nuisance. 
 
18.12 The SAG will not determine licence applications.  It may recommend conditions. The Licensing 

Authority will expect applicants and organisers of large temporary events to produce a satisfactory 
Event Management Plan for their event and to comply with any recommendations made by the 
group. 

 
18.13 The Licensing Authority recommends that for significant events and the use of promoters as defined 

in the glossary, a comprehensive risk assessment is undertaken by premises licence holders to 
ensure that crime and disorder and public safety matters are identified and addressed. 

 
18.14 Accordingly, for premises that wish to stage promotions or events the Licensing Authority 

recommends that applicants address the Risk Assessment and debrief processes in their operating 
schedule. 

 

Page 69

mailto:events@lbhf.gov.uk


35 

 

 

18.15 The Licensing Authority further recommends the Metropolitan Police Promotion Event Risk 
Assessment Form 696 and the After Promotion Event Debrief Risk Assessment Form 696A as 
useful and effective tools for this purpose.  Where the Risk Assessment forms are used to assess 
the likely risks from any promotion or event, the Licensing Authority anticipates that these will be 
completed in consultation with the Metropolitan Police.  Risk assessments should be submitted to 
the Metropolitan Police and the Licensing Authority within 14 days of any proposed event and 
debrief forms submitted within 14 days of the conclusion. 

 
18.16 Forms 696 and 696A are available on the Metropolitan Police web site at  http://www.met.police.uk/ It 

is recommended that electronic completion and transmission of the forms is undertaken by 
licensees. E-mail addresses for submission are fhlicensing@met.police.uk the Central Licensing 
Team of the Metropolitan Police TP-C&S-LicensingTeam@met.police.uk and licensing@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
18.17 Generally, applicants are advised to offer only the following conditions in their Operating Schedule. 

 
• The Licensee shall comply with the Event Management Plan submitted to and approved by the 

Licensing Authority. 

• The Event shall be run in accordance with the site plan submitted to, and approved by, the 
Licensing Authority. No changes shall be made to the site plan without the prior written consent 
of the Licensing Authority. 

 
18.18 This approach allows the event organiser flexibility to make changes to the layout of the event or to 

specific activities without the need to make a fresh application for a Premises Licence or an 
application to vary the Premises Licence already granted. Without this approach, any changes made 
could be unauthorised and possibly result in enforcement action. 

 
18.19 The council may itself  seek premises licences for appropriate public spaces within the borough. 

This will make it easier for people to organise suitable cultural events. We will consider any request  
for  permission  to  use  such  public  spaces  for  cultural  activities  having  regard  to  the 
promotion of the four licensing objectives.  

 
 

19 Designated Premises Supervisors (DPS) in community 
premises 

 

19.1 Community premises can have a licence to supply alcohol without the requirement to have a 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS). 

 
19.2 An application for such a licence can be made by a management committee of the community 

premises.  The following condition will be attached to the premise licence: “Every supply of alcohol 
under the premises licence must be made or authorised by the management committee.” 

 
19.3 Church halls, chapel halls, parish halls, community halls, village halls are examples of community 

premises. Where it is not clear whether premises are community premises, the matter will be 
approached on a case-by-case basis, with the main consideration being how the premises are 
predominantly used. If they are: 

 
• genuinely made available for community benefit most of the time; 

 

Page 70

http://www.met.police.uk/
mailto:fhlicensing@met.police.uk
mailto:TP-C&S-LicensingTeam@met.police.uk
mailto:licensing@lbhf.gov.uk


36 

 

 

• accessible by a broad range of people and sectors of the local community; 
 

• providing facilities to benefit the community as a whole; 
 

• they are likely to be considered to be community premises. 
 

19.4 If it is authorised for the sale of alcohol, the management committee of the premises can apply to 
remove the DPS requirement. This removes the mandatory conditions in relation to a DPS and the 
personal licence holder(s). See Annex 1. 

 
19.5 The application form requires the applicants to provide the names of the management committee's 

key officers to the Licensing Authority. The Licensing Authority must be satisfied that arrangements 
for the management of the premises by the committee or board are sufficient to ensure the 
adequate supervision of the supply of alcohol on the premises. 

 
19.6 Existing premises licence holders must pay a fee and the application will take 28 days to process. 

 
19.7 In exceptional circumstances, the police can object to the request on grounds of crime and disorder. 

The Licensing Authority must then hold a hearing to reach a decision on whether to grant the 
application. 

 
 

20 Enforcement 
 
20.1 The Licensing Authority operates a proactive inspection regime that is based on risk. These 

inspections are linked to the Environmental Health Service Group’s Enforcement Policy, which 
explains how officers take a graduated response to possible breaches of relevant l;egislation. 
Relevant action will be taken after each visit in accordance with this policy.  A copy of the 
Environmental Health Service Group’s Enforcement Policy can be found at: 

 
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Images/EHSG_Enforcement_Policy_March_2015_tcm21-21104.pdf 

 
20.2 Premises that produce disorder, threaten public safety, generate public nuisance or threaten the well 

being of our children will be targeted for enforcement action. 
 
20.4 The Licensing Authority will take necessary enforcement action in accordance with our Enforcement 

Policy and relevant statutory powers. 
 
20.5 The Licensing Authority will use a range of sanctions such as letters of warning, simple cautions, 

Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs), closure notices and legal proceedings. 
 
20.6 The Licensing Authority will seek to work with the police and other responsible authorities in 

enforcing licensing legislation and will strive to have a joint enforcement protocol with all the relevant 
agencies.  When the law allows, the Licensing Authority will agree secure mechanisms to share 
information with other regulators about licensed premises, to help target resources and activities and 
minimise duplication. 

 
20.7 Enforcement will be focused on premises or persons found to be failing to promote the four 

Licensing Objectives.  Additionally, Trading Standards officers may, at times and based on 
intelligence received, carry out underage test purchasing in areas where the intelligence has 
highlighted hotspots in the borough for underage sales of alcohol. 

Page 71

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Images/EHSG_Enforcement_Policy_March_2015_tcm21-21104.pdf


37 

 

 

 
20.8 Licence holders should note that in the event of a failure to pay the annual licence fee this 

Authority will suspend the licence in accordance with section 55A Licensing Act 2003. 

 

 

21 Dealing with Complaints, Representations and Reviews 
 
21.1 The Act describes two “groups” that may make representations to applications and may apply for an 

existing premises licence or club premises certificate to be reviewed by the Licensing Authority. 
These groups are Responsible Authorities and “Other Persons”. 

 
 

21.2 “Other Persons” means any individual, body or business who is affected by the operation of a 
licensed premises regardless of their geographical location. Although they may be in any 
geographical position, any representation they make must be relevant to one or more of the 
licensing objectives, and must not be considered to be frivolous or vexatious in nature. 
Additionally, any application to review a premises licence must not be repetitious. 

 
21.3 This Licensing Authority will, however, look at the geographical location of the author of any 

representation or review application received. Where the author lives or works a significant 
distance from the premises subject of an application or review, this Authority will examine the 
content of the representation particularly closely to ensure that it is valid and complies with the 
requirement of the Act . 

 
21.4 The Licensing Authority may initially arrange a mediation meeting to address concerns where “Other 

Persons” have made: 

 
• Valid representations about licensed premises; or 

• A valid application for a licence to be reviewed 
 
21.5 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a Responsible Authority, such as the police or 

the fire authority, or other persons, may apply for a licence to be reviewed because of a matter 
arising at the premises in connection with any of the four Licensing Objectives. 

 
21.6 A licence will be reviewed where it is alleged that the Licensing Objectives are not being promoted 

and there is evidence to show this. The Licensing Authority will regard applications for the review of 
any premises licence particularly seriously where they involve evidence of: 

• Use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of drugs and the laundering of drugs 
money; 

• Use of licensed premises for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms; 

• Evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music; 

• Underage sales and consumption of alcohol; 

• Use of licensed premises for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; 

• Serious risks to children; 

• Use of licensed premises for unlawful gaming and gambling; 

• Use of licensed premises as a base for organised criminal activity; 

• Use of licensed premises for the organisation of racist, homophobic, sexual abuse, attacks or 
any discriminatory behaviour; 

Page 72



38 

 

 

• Use of licensed premises for storing or selling illegal alcohol or tobacco or smuggled goods; 

• The use of licensed premises for the sale of stolen goods; 

• Incidents of disorder; 

• Instances of public nuisance where warnings have been disregarded; 

• Serious risks to public safety which the management is unable or unwilling to correct; 

• Frequently operating outside permitted hours. 

There may be legal implications if activity of child sexual exploitation (CSE) is taking place on 
licensed premises and there has been a failure to demonstrate due diligence or that adequate 
safeguards are in place – this may lead to prosecution or any of the licensing sanctions detailed in 
paragraph 21.6 below. 

 
21.7 At a hearing held to determine an application for a review of a licence the sub-committee may: 

 
• Modify the conditions of the premises licence; 

• Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 

• Remove the designated premises supervisor; 

• Suspend the licence for up to three months; 

• Revoke the licence. 

 Take no further action  
 
21.8 Other persons aggrieved by decisions of the Licensing Authority are entitled to lodge an appeal 

against the decision at the magistrates’ court. 
 
21.9 In order to give residents an opportunity to learn about new applications we have set up an email 

alert system on the Council’s website.  This will enable residents and other persons to make 
representations to the Licensing Authority if they wish to do so. Please note that representations 
cannot normally be made anonymously.  To join the email alert system, please follow the following 
link:  
https://www.apps1.lbhf.gov.uk/myaccount/PublicPages/iCaseWorkLogin.aspx?redirect=https%3A%2
F%2Fwww.apps3.lbhf.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.sub%3Fauth%3D0&anonymous=&context= 

 
21.10 Where the Licensing Authority considers that action under its statutory powers is necessary it may 

seek to issue a warning letter, a simple caution or prosecute for the offence. 
 
21.11 Complaints about breaches of conditions e.g. trading after the hours stated on the licence, should 

be brought to the attention of the Licensing Team on 020 8753 1081 or by email at 
licensing@lbhf.gov.uk. Licensing Officers can also provide a copy of the licence with the full licence 
conditions. 

 
21.12 Complaints about other issues e.g. noise nuisance, underage sales, should be brought to the 

attention of the relevant responsible authority. See section 22 – Consideration of Our Residents. 

 

22 Consideration of our residents 
 
22.1 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance and anti-social 

behaviour caused by people once they are away from the licensed premises and therefore beyond 
the direct control of the licensee. Nonetheless, licensing is a key aspect of such control and 

Page 73

https://www.apps1.lbhf.gov.uk/myaccount/PublicPages/iCaseWorkLogin.aspx?redirect=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.apps3.lbhf.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.sub%3Fauth%3D0&anonymous=&context
https://www.apps1.lbhf.gov.uk/myaccount/PublicPages/iCaseWorkLogin.aspx?redirect=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.apps3.lbhf.gov.uk%2Fcus%2Fservlet%2Fep.sub%3Fauth%3D0&anonymous=&context
mailto:licensing@lbhf.gov.uk


39 

 

 

licensing law is part of a holistic approach to the management of the night time economy. 
 

However, as a matter of policy the council expects every holder of a licence, certificate or 
permission, to accept and be responsible for minimising the impact of their activities and anti-social 
behaviour by their patrons within the vicinity of their premises by taking appropriate measures and 
action consistent with that responsibility. 

 

22.2 Licensees and certificate holders should take reasonable steps to prevent the occurrence of crime 
and disorder and public nuisance immediately outside their premises, for example on the pavement, 
in a beer garden or in a smoking area, to the extent that these matters are within their control. 

 

22.3 Population densities in this borough are high, with many residential premises located above or in 
close proximity to licensed premises. This means that the public nuisance and crime and disorder 
objectives will be of paramount concern when evaluating Operating Schedules. Licensing Committees 
will place high regard on the control measures in place by the applicant in order to ensure our 
residents are protected from the potential detrimental effects of any licensed premises. 

 
22.4 Residents are advised to contact the Noise and Nuisance Reactive Service on 020 8753 1081 

during office hours and 020 8748 8588 at all other times that any noise nuisance is occurring. Any 
review of a licence would need to be evidence based and as such is best supported by evidence 
from responsible authorities such as the Police or Environmental Protection to be successful. For 
this reason it is vital to call our 'out of hours' team on 
020 8748 8588 at the time nuisance is occurring. 

 
22.5 If residents want to approach councillors to ask them to represent their views, they should be careful 

that the councillors are not part of the licensing committee dealing with the licence application. 
Councillors may be restricted in representing constituents under the members’ code of conduct in 
cases where they have a particular interest. Please contact the Licensing team if there are any 
doubts. 
 

22.6 If residents are experiencing ongoing problems with particular licensed premises, please refer to 
Section 21 – Dealing with Complaints, Representations and Reviews. 

 
23 Licensing Committee 

23.1 The Licensing Committee is a Committee which is established under the Licensing Act 2003.  The 
rules regarding membership, composition and conduct are dictated by the Licensing Act 2003.    The 
Licensing Committee, and subsequently the Licensing Sub Committee, does not need to be 
politically balanced, however, the Licensing Authority will endeavour to do so. 

Section 6 of the Licensing Act 2003 specifically states that the Licensing Authority must establish a 
committee consisting of between 10 and 15 councillors. Section 9 states that the sub-committees 
should consist of three councillors.  The Licensing Authority will endeavour to ensure that three 
should be the norm even if a quorum is 2. 

 
23.2 This Authority’s Licensing Committee will consist of up to fifteen councillors that may sit annually 

to discuss policy, review delegated decisions, changes in legislation and administrative matters. 
Accordingly, those Members who sit on the licensing sub-committee will receive training in all areas 
of licensing under the Act dealing with practice and procedure. This is so that they are equipped with 

Page 74



40 

 

 

the necessary skills so as to discharge their duties fully during the decision making process when 
considering such applications, having regard to those principles set out in the Members Code of 
Conduct (as more particularly detailed under Part 5 of the Constitution). The Licensing Authority will 
consider this Statement of Licensing Policy at least every five years. Any changes to the policy will 
include full consultation with all interested parties. 

 
23.3 A sub-committee of three councillors must determine applications where representations have 

been received from other persons and/or Responsible Authorities.  If a councillor finds that he or she 
is unable to sit at the sub-committee meeting after the agenda has been published, best endeavours 
will be made to find a substitute. 

 
23.4 Where a councillor who is a member of a Licensing Committee or a subcommittee has had prior, 

direct involvement in an application before them, in the interests of good governance they will 
disqualify themselves from any involvement in the decision-making process affecting the premises 
licence in question. 

 
23.5 Where the applicant would like the Licensing Sub-Committee to carry out a site visit, this should be 

arranged prior to the licensing hearing and should be requested at the earliest opportunity 
 
23.6 Each decision of the Licensing Committee or its sub-committee(s) shall be accompanied with clear 

reasons for the decision. A summary of the decision will be posted on the council’s website as soon 
as reasonably practicable after the decision has been confirmed, where it will form part of the 
statutory licensing register required to be kept by the Licensing Authority under section 8 of the Act. 

 
23.7 The Licensing Authority’s authorised officers will deal with licence applications where either no 

representations have been received, or where representations have been received and the parties 
agree that a hearing is not necessary. 

 
23.8 The Licensing Authority’s authorised officers will make decisions upon whether representations are 

frivolous or vexatious.  Where representations are rejected, the person making that representation 
will be given written reasons for the decision. 

 

24 Support for Local Businesses 
 
24.1 This Licensing Authority recognises that certain licence holders e.g. Limited companies have a 

number of premises within and outside the borough. In order to ensure compliance issues are 
recognised and resolved at the earliest stage, the Licensing Authority will contact the Primary 
Authority for the business. Where there is no Primary Authority Partnership in place, licence holders 
are requested to give the Authority a single named point of contact, who should be a senior 
individual, and whom the Authority will contact first should any compliance queries or issues arise. 

 
24.2 We are committed to the Regulators Code and supporting businesses.  

 
i) We will work with businesses in our borough and provide the advice you need to help you 

comply with the law. This may be through meeting with you at your premises or at our offices, 
providing written advice in an email or letter or verbally over the telephone.  

 

Page 75



41 

 

 

ii) We will usually confirm any technical/ legal advice in writing. For applicants and agents we 
also offer a pre application advice service. Further details about this service can be found on 
our website.  

 
iii) The Public Health Training Service provides a variety of training courses for managers and 

their employees. These include courses for personal licence holders and health and safety 
courses. Further details about these courses and other training that is available can be found 
on our website.  

 
iv) We will attend pub watch meetings and work with local businesses (including the 

Hammersmith Business Improvement District) to help facilitate the sharing of information and 
advice amongst licensees in our borough.  

 
v) We are continuously working to improve our online application process for a range of licence 

permissions. If you want to know what services are available or you want to make an 
application online please check our website for further details.  

 
vi) We want to ensure that businesses comply with the law. Where this has not been possible 

through advice and education we will carry out enforcement action in accordance with our 
enforcement policy and as part of our commitment to the Regulators Code.  

 
vii) We want local businesses in our borough to thrive and survive. We recognise that the law can 

be complex at times and that despite trying to resolve issues through discussion in the first 
instance, enforcement will be necessary on some occasions. We also recognise that attitudes, 
circumstances and personnel often change over time.  

 
24.3 Where enforcement action has been taken against a business in the past relevant Responsible 

Authorities will be mindful of this when considering any new applications. However, all new 
applications e.g. variations to hours or licensable activities will be decided on their merits and the 
information provided to demonstrate promotion of the four licensing objectives. Where a premises 
licence or club premises certificate has previously been reviewed or the business has been 
prosecuted for licensing offences, licensees are advised to discuss any new/proposed changes with 
the Licensing Authority and/or the relevant Responsible Authority e.g. The Police, to resolve any 
ongoing concerns and/or issues. 

 

25.  Human Rights 
 

25.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human Rights and makes it 
unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a Convention Right.  
Hammersmith & Fulham Council will have particular regard to its rights and responsibilites under the 
Human Rights Act 1998 when determining applications and reviewing this policy.  The Council will 
have regard to: 

 
Article 6; that in the determination of civil rights everyone is entitled to a fair and public hearing within 
a reasonable period of time by an independent and impartial tribunal established by law. 

Article 8; that everyone has the right to respect for his home and private life; and  

Article 1 of the First Protocol; that every person is entitled to peaceful enjoyment of his or her 
possessions. 

Page 76



42 

 

 

Annex 1 

MANDATORY CONDITIONS – ON LICENCES 

 

1. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 

substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol 

for consumption on the premises— 

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage, 

individuals to— 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on 

the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is authorised to 

sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to 

the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant 

risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the 

purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries a 

significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity 

of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social 

behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other 

person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 

 

2. The responsible person shall ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers 
where it is reasonably available. 

 
3. (i) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
 

(ii) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the 

supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

(iii) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years 

of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being 

served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

Page 77



43 

 

 

(a) a holographic mark, or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 
 

4. The responsible person must ensure that— 
 

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises 

(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or 

supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to 

customers on the premises; and 

 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be 

sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 

 

5. (1). A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  

(2). For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—  

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;  

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—  

   P = D + (D x V) 

where—  

(i) P is the permitted price,  
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged 

on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and  
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added 

tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a  

premises licence—  

(i) the holder of the premises licence,  

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 

licence;  

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 

club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 

Page 78



44 

 

 

capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and  

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 

Tax Act 1994.  

(3) Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole  number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 

taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.  

(4) (i) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 

paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the 

next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added 

tax.  

(ii) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 

alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the 

second day.  

6. (1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 
 

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 

licence, or 

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or 

his personal licence is suspended. 

 
(2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person 

who holds a personal licence 
 

 
7. Exhibition of Films 
 

Admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the film 
classification body specified in the licence 

 
Or 

 
where the licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that it considers a classification or 
an alternative classification is necessary then 

 
Admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that 
licensing authority 

 
In this section- 

 
"children" means persons aged under 18; and 

 
"film classification body" means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 
of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for 

Page 79



45 

 

 

classification). 
 
8. Door Supervisors 
 

Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must 
be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. 

 
  

Page 80



46 

 

 

 

MANDATORY CONDITIONS – OFF LICENCES 

 
1. General Condition 

 

1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 

alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the 

supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years 

of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being 

served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

(a) a holographic mark, or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 
 

2. General Condition 

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—  

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;  

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—  

   P = D + (D x V) 

where—  

(iv) P is the permitted price,  
(v) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged 

on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and  
(vi) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added 

tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  
(c)“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a  

premises licence—  

(i) the holder of the premises licence,  

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 

licence;  

Page 81



47 

 

 

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 

club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 

capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and  

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 

Tax Act 1994.  

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole  number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 

taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.  

 4 (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 

paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day 

(“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.  

   (2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 

alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 

day.  

 

3.  General Condition 
 
(1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence- 

 

(a)   at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 

licence, or 

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or 

his personal licence is suspended. 

 
(2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person 

who holds a personal licence 
 

4. Exhibition of Films 
 

Admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the film 
classification body specified in the licence 

 
Or 

 
where the licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that it considers a classification or 
an alternative classification is necessary then 

 
Admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that 
licensing authority 

 
In this section- 

 
"children" means persons aged under 18; and 

Page 82



48 

 

 

 
"film classification body" means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 
of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for 
classification). 

 
5. Door Supervisors 

 
Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must 
be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. 

 
  

Page 83



49 

 

 

MANDATORY CONDITIONS – CLUB PREMISES 

 
1. General Condition 

 

(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or 

participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 

 

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, 

or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of 

alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 

(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage, individuals to— 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 

supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible 

person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted 

fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which 

carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 

reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a 

manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 

vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 

glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any 

favourable manner; 

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 

that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 

2. General Condition 
 
The responsible person shall ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers 
where it is reasonably available. 
 

3. General Condition 
 

1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification 

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply 

of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

Page 84



50 

 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of 

age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 

alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either— 

(a) a holographic mark, or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 
 

4. General Condition 
 

The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises 

(other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply 

in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures— 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to 

customers on the premises; and 

 

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold, 

the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 

 

5. General Condition 

1.A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—  

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;  

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—  

   P = D + (D x V) 

where—  

(vii) P is the permitted price,  
(viii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged 

on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and  
(ix) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added 

tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a  premises 

licence—  

(i) the holder of the premises licence,  

Page 85



51 

 

 

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 

licence;  

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club 

premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity 

which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and  

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 

1994.  

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole  number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 

taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.  

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 

on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the 

second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.  

  (2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 

alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 

day.  

 
 
 
6. General Condition 

 
(1) The supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises must be made at a time when the 

premises are open for the purposes of supplying alcohol, in accordance with the club premises 
certificate, to members of the club for consumption on the premises. 

 
(2) Any alcohol supplied for consumption off the premises must be in a sealed container. 

 
(3) Any supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises must be made to a member of the club 

in person. (only include condition 6 if the CPC also permits supply of alcohol OFF the Premises) 
 

7. Exhibition of Films 

 
Admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by the film 
classification body specified in the licence 

 
Or 

 
where the licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that it considers a classification or 
an alternative classification is necessary then 

 
Admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that 
licensing authority 

 

Page 86



52 

 

 

In this section- 
 

"children" means persons aged under 18; and 
 

"film classification body" means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 
of the Video Recordings Act 1984 (c.39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for 
classification). 

 
8. Door Supervisors 

 
Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must 
be at the premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. 

 
  

Page 87



53 

 

 

Annex 2 

Special licensing policy for Fulham Town Centre 
 
Please see:  

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licen
sing_policy.asp 

 

Annex 3 

Fulham Town Centre – Commulative Impact Zone 

Data Report 2015 
 

Please see: 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Lic

ensing_policy.asp 

 

Annex 4 

Special licensing policy for the Shepherd’s Bush Area 
 
Please see: 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Lic

ensing_policy.asp 

 
 

ANNEX 5 

 

Shepherds Bush Area - Cumulative Impact Zone 

Data Report 2015 
 
 

Please see: 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Lic

ensing_policy.asp 

  

Page 88

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Business/Licences_and_street_trading/Licensing_a_z/59466_Licensing_policy.asp


54 

 

 

ANNEX 6 

Glossary 
 
Appeals 

Appeals against decisions of the Licensing Authority are to the magistrates’ court for the area in which the 
premises are situated. The appeal must be lodged within 21 days of being notified of the Licensing 
Authority’s decision. On appeal a magistrates’ court may, dismiss the appeal; substitute its own decision; 
remit the case to the Licensing Authority with directions; and make an order for costs. 

 

 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) 

The person in the case of premises selling alcohol, who will normally have been given the day to day 
responsibility for running the premises by the holder of the Premises Licence or will be the Premises 
Licence holder themselves (who must also be a Personal Licence holder.) 

 

Extended hours application 

Any application that seeks to extend the hours of operation of the premises to which it relates. Whilst all 
applications will be thoroughly scrutinised with a view to the promotion of the Licensing Objectives, 
particular care might need to be taken when an extension of hours is requested. In such circumstances, 
there might be greater potential for impact on residential occupiers that might amount to a public 
nuisance.  An hours restriction might be the only method of promoting the Licensing  Objectives, 
particularly in the light of advice in PPG 24 Planning and Noise which recognises a distinction that noise 
might have on residential occupants between the hours of 11pm and 7am compared with the rest of the 
day. 

 

Late night refreshment premises 

Premises where refreshment is provided at any time between the hours of 11.00pm and 5.00am. This 
includes the supply of hot food or hot drink to members of the public whether for consumption on or off the 
premises. 

 

Licensable activities 

Those activities under the Licensing Act 2003, which require a licence from the Licensing Authority include 
the following: 

• The sale by retail of alcohol; 

• The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of a club; 

• The provision of regulated entertainment; 

• The provision of late night refreshment. 
 
Licensing Authority 

In the Licensing Act 2003 licensing authorities in London are defined as the councils of London 
boroughs. 

 

Other Persons 
 
Other Persons means any individual, body or business who is affected by the operation of a licensed 
premises regardless of their geographical location. 

80 

Page 89



 

 

 

Personal licences 

A licence which: 
 

 

• Is granted by a Licensing Authority to an individual; 

• Authorises that individual to supply alcohol, or authorise the supply of alcohol, in accordance with 
the premises licence. 

 
Regulated entertainment 

Entertainment where the following takes place in front of an audience and is provided for the purpose of 
entertaining that audience: 

 

 

• A performance of a play (no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.); 

 

• An exhibition of a film (no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community 
premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 
and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening from a person who is responsible for the 
premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides by age classification ratings.); 

 
• An indoor sporting event (no licence is required for an event between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, 

provided that those present do not exceed 1000.);  

• A boxing or wrestling entertainment (indoors and outdoors) (no licence is required for a contest, 
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on 
any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.); 

 
• A performance of live music (no licence permission is required for: 

 a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any 
premises. 

 a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises 
authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises at a time when the premises are 
open for the purposes of being used for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises, 
provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

 a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace23 
that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 
500.  

 a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, 
village hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a 
premises licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential 
premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience 
does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant 
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for 
the hospital.;) 

 

81 

Page 90



 

 

 

• Any playing of recorded music; (no licence permission is required for: 
 

 any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to 
sell alcohol for consumption on those premises at a time when the premises are open for the 
purposes of being used for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises, provided that 
the audience does not exceed 500. 

 any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village 
hall, community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises 
licence to sell alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser 
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 

 any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential 
premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience 
does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant 
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care 
provider for the hospital.) 

 

 Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no 
limit on audience size for: 

 

 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is 
provided by or on behalf of the local authority;  

 any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the 
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;  

 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided 
by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and 

 
 any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a 

travelling circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates 
the audience, and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more 
than 28 consecutive days.  

 

• A performance of dance (no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on 

any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.); 

• Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within the performance of live music, the 
playing of recorded music and the performance of dance. 

 
NB If the music is incidental to the main purpose of the event then this will not require a licence, such as 
provision of a jukebox.  

 

Relevant representation 

A representation (objection) by an ‘other person’ or a responsible authority that relates to the likely effect 
of the grant of a licence application on the promotion of at least one of the four Licensing Objectives. 

 

Responsible authorities 

These include: 
 

• Licensing Authority 
 

82 

Page 91



 

 

 

• Chief Officer of Police; 

• The Fire Authority; 

• The enforcing authority for health and safety at work; 

• The Director of Public Health’ Team 

• The Planning Authority; 

• The local authority responsible for minimising or preventing the risk of pollution or harm to human 
health; 

• The recognised body responsible for the protection of children from harm; 

• Trading Standards. 

 

Special event 
This definition relates to events that require a Promotion Event Risk Assessment Form 696 and 696A 

 
A significant event will be deemed to be any occasion in a premises licensed under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, where there will be a live performer(s) – meaning musicians, DJs, MCs or other artiste; 
that is promoted in some form by either the venue or an outside promoter; where entry is either free, by 
invitation, pay on the door or by ticket. 

 
Security Industry Authority (SIA) 

An authority that implements the Private Security Industry Act 2001, their key role is managing and issuing 
of licences for people working in particular areas of the private security business, including door 
supervisors. 

 
Variation 

A variation is a material change to a premises licence and would include an increase in the capacity of the 
premises, a change in the hours of operation of the premises, and change to the way the premises is to 
operate in regard to the operating schedule or a request to vary an existing condition attached to the 
premises licence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

83 

Page 92



 

 

 

Contact details 
 
For further information about this policy please contact  licensing@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

or write to: 
 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Licensing Authority 

PO Box 66532 
London 
W8 9GJ 

 

Phone: 020 8753 1081 
 
Email:  licensing@lbhf.gov.uk 

Website:  www.lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84 

Page 93

mailto:licensing@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@lbhf.gov.uk
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/


 

London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
COMMUNITY SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND 

RESIDENTS SERVICES POLICY & ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 

 
18 NOVEMBER 2015 

 

 

 

COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT 2015-16 
 

Report of the Director for Safer Neighbourhoods 
 

Open Report 

Classification - For Policy & Accountability Review & Comment 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Accountable Executive Director: David Page 
 

Report Author: Duncan Smith 
                           Principal Intelligence Analyst 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 0208 753 2551 
E-mail: duncan.smith@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The 2015-16 Strategic Assessment is an evidence based document underpinning 
the work of the London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham (LBHF) Crime & 
Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP). 

 
The Assessment outlines the strategic crime and safety priorities for the coming 
year. The Assessment uses a range of data sources, analysis and intelligence to 
recommend the strategic priorities.  The Assessment also considers the wider local 
and national crime and disorder priorities (for example from the Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime). 

 
Following this process 7 strategic priorities were identified by the CDRP: 

1. Adult and Youth Reoffending 
2. Violent Crime. Focus on Violence Against a Person and Violence Against 

Women and Girls (VAWG) 
3. Motor Vehicle Crime 
4. Environmental Crime: Focusing on Flytipping 
5. Anti-Social Behaviour: Focusing on Noise Nuisance 
6. Victims; including Child Sexual Exploitation 
7. Problem locations: Focusing on Town Centres 

 
Accompanying these priorities is a list of recommendations for the CDRP which can 
be viewed in the appendix. 

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. For the Committee to review and comment on the 7 strategic priorities  
 
2.2. For the Committee to understand why the priorities have been chosen, how they 

will be monitored and what action will be taken to improve performance, 
outcomes and resident satisfaction in the future. 

 
 

3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

3.1. These seven strategic priorities will inform future activities and initiatives to 
improve local performance, outcomes and resident satisfaction and reassurance 
over the coming year. 

 
 
4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

4.1. The 2015-16 Strategic Assessment sets out the evidence base for the crime and 
safety priorities for the year. The Assessment includes an analysis of 
performance over the last year as well as longer term trends, includes emerging 
trends, and considers local and national themes and policies. The document also 
includes a horizon scanning section considering future impacts on crime and 
safety in the Borough (for example, the introduction of night time tubes). 

 
4.2. The long term trend for Total Notifiable Offences (TNOs) between 2004-05 and 

2014-15 continues to show a downward trend. LBHF has achieved a 21.9% 
reduction in MOPAC 7 offences since the baseline year (March 2012). However 
the last year has experienced an increase in the number of TNOs from 18,994 in 
2013-14 to 20,220 in 2014-15. This was the fourth highest increase in London 
and second highest within LBHF’s Most Similar Force (MSF) group. 

 
4.3. Overall the number of TNOs increased by 6.5% over the last year but this varies 

across different crime categories. Violence against a Person (26.5%), Criminal 
Damage (21.1%) and Theft and Handling (3.6%) offences have all experienced 
an increase between 2013-14 and 2014-15. However Drug (-18.3%), Personal 
Robbery (-22.0%) and Burglary (-1.5%) offences have all experienced decreases 
over the same time period. 

 
4.4. Due to changes in recording Violence against a Person offences have increased 

across London not just in Hammersmith and Fulham. Hammersmith and Fulham 
has a higher criminal damage conversion rate compared to other London 
Boroughs. This means that more reported incidents of criminal damage are 
recorded as a crime compared to other Forces. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



5. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  

5.1. The following section is a summary of all identified priority areas and why the 
CDRP have included them. Further details can be accessed in the appendix. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



6. OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  

6.1. A number of working groups will be established with a lead officer for each 
priority. These groups will take the lead on identifying relevant actions and 
interventions to ensure improvements in each of the priority areas. These working 
groups will report back to the CDRP which is chaired by Borough Commander of 
the Metropolitan Police. 
 

7. CONSULTATION 

This Assessment has been produced in partnership with the Police and other 
partners who sit on the CDRP board. 

8. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

Equality impact assessments will be completed as and when required following 
any further work on the strategic priorities. 

9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

None. 
 

10. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

The Council have agreed to fund 44 additional police officers in the Borough from 
April 2015 for a period of 3 years. The Hammersmith and Fulham Policing Team 
(HFPT) will consist of one Police Inspector, two Police Sergeants and 41 Police 
Constables. This report will help the HFPT to reduce crime and disorder and 
increase public reassurance. 

 
11.  IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 
 
 Reducing the rate of crime within town centres will have a positive impact on 

businesses. The Hammersmith BID Operations manager sits on the CDRP and is 
also involved in delivering the SA. 

 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
Appendix 1 - Community Safety Strategic Assessment Priorities 2015-16 

Page 97



 1 

  2015-16 Priorities 
From the analysis completed during the strategic assessment process and the current policy landscape the following 

priorities for 2015-16 have been recommended.  

Figure 1.6: 2015-16 Priorities 

Page 98



 2 

 The seven local priorities for 2015/16 are agreed and adopted by the Partnership, alongside wider reaching priorities including 

terrorism and ensuring the safety of vulnerable children. 

 The Partnership commits to the cycle outlined in figure 1.1 and generates action and improvement plans for the priorities. 

 The Partnership agrees to a rolling, quarterly programme of performance updates on the priorities. A rolling, quarterly programme 

of intelligence and research products is introduced covering existing priorities and emerging themes. 

 The existing information sharing protocol is revised and updated, and all new information sharing agreements are created, agreed 

and signed. 

 Consider making more use of sanction detection rates data in communication campaigns. 

 Following the evaluation of the London Fire Brigade Home Fire Safety Visit scheme locally in the borough, it is recommended that 

the information sharing and referrals be extended to child and family services, and to wider agencies including Job Centre Plus. 

 The Partnership analysts develop in depth problem profiles of all seven priorities. 

 Assess the extent to which predictive techniques can assist in reducing adult offending and youth reoffending; and how potential 

repeat victims and locations can be identified and safeguarded. 

 Develop a local strategy to address the levels of crime and anti-social behaviour in persistent, problem locations across the 

borough. 

 A separate report to be commissioned that looks in detail at attractors and generators in the Borough focusing on town centres. 

 Local information systems need improving, with geographical information collected as routine, including x and y co-ordinates, 

unique property reference numbers and postcodes. Where possible, systems should be linked to the corporate gazetteer. 

Summary of Recommendations 

Page 99



 3 

Part 4: Priorities 2015-16 

Priority 1 - Adult and Youth Reoffending 

Over the last 5 years the actual number of offenders who 

reside in the Borough has fallen by 2.6% to a level of 2,066 in 

the 2012 cohort. This represents a rate of 11.6 offenders for 

every thousand population which is the 6th highest in 

London. 

 Adult Offending 

 Adult Re-offending 

Figure 15.1: Overview of Adult Offending 

Figure  15.3: Adult Offences by type 
Figure 15.2: Comparative Offending Rates. Highlighted local authorities are part of 

LBHFs MSF 

Despite this reduction, the change is number of offenders is relatively low compared to most others in the country (ranking 

49th lowest out of 325 local authorities, and 5th lowest out of all of the London boroughs). 

In terms of type of offences the highest volume types occur in Summary Crimes, Theft and Other Crimes Against Society. Since 

2008 the number of Public Order offences, Summary Non-motoring, Theft and Violence Against the Person Offences have 

increased. 

Of all offenders in the 2012 calendar year cohort, 30.5% went 

on to reoffend in the following 12 months. This is the highest re-

offending rate in London, and the 11th highest rate of all Local 

Authorities in England and Wales. 

This has be caused by a decrease in total number of offenders (-

2.6% between 2008 and 2012) being offset by increases in 

reoffenders (by 9.8% in the same period). 

There have also been increases in the number of actual re-

offences committed. Between 2008 and 2012, there was a 2.4% 

increase in the number of re-offences, compared to a 13% drop 

in London and a 14% drop nationally. 

Figure 15.4: Comparative Re-Offending Rates 

Page 100



 4 

Figure 15.5: Number of Reoffenders by Offence Type Figure 15.6: Number of Reoffences by Offence Type 

The number of reoffenders has increased from 573 in 2008 to 629 in 2012. The biggest percentage increase occurred in 

Violence Against the Person reoffenders (61.1%), Drug reoffenders (31.3%) and Other Crimes Against Society reoffenders 

(29.7%).  

This change has been replicated in the number of re-offences with Violence Against a Person offences increasing by 33.3%, 

Drug re-offences increasing by 15.1% and Other Crimes Against Society increasing by 19.2%. 

The number of Public Order re-offenders and re-offences have also increased over the last 5 years. 

 Youth Offending 

Since 2005-06 the number of youth offenders has decreased by 54.6% from 355 in 2005-06 to 2012-13 in 2012-13. 

Similarly the number of re-offenders have also decreased by 44.1% from 136 in 2005-06 to 76 in 2012-13. However the 

re-offending rate has increased over the same time period.  

Figure 15.7: Overview of Youth Offending 

In 2012-13 47.2% of offenders went on to reoffend in the following 12 months. This is the second highest rate in 

London and 12th highest nationally. Since 2008/09 the reoffending rate has increased from 35.4 to 47.2 in 2012-13. 

This has mainly be caused by a the fact that the cohort of offenders has decreased more than the cohort of 

reoffenders over the same time period (46% compared to 41% respectively). 

Figure 15.8: Youth Reoffending Rate Figure 15.9: Reoffending Rate London Comparison 

 Youth Re-offending 

Page 101



 5 

Recommendation 

Reoffending should be a priority for the partnership. The partnership to explore whether predictive modelling can be 

used to target interventions at individuals most at risk of offending and reoffending. 

Since Oct 09 - Sept 10 the number of first time entrants to the Youth Offending service has decreased from a rate of 

1,152 per 100,000 10-17 population to 549 per 100,000 10-17 population. This is above the National and London rate. 

In terms of ethnicity, both Black and Mixed ethnicities are overrepresented in the youth offending cohort while White  

ethnicity is underrepresented. 

Figure 15.10: First Time Entrants. Rate per 100,000 10-17 population Figure 15.11: Ethnicity - Percentage over or under representation 

Page 102



 6 

Priority 2:  Violent Crime 

The number of Violence Against a Person offences has 

increased by 26.5% from 4,051 in 2013-14 to 5,123 in 2014-

15. This is the highest level offences have been at over the 

last 10 years. However there has been changes in recording 

of VAP offences resulting in all local authorities in London 

experiencing an increase since 2013-14. In fact the increase 

experienced by LBHF has been 19th highest across London. 

This should not detract from the fact that the volume of 

crime designated as Violence Against a Person has increased 

and should remain a priority for the partnership. 

When Violence Against a Person offences are broken 

down into more specific offences the biggest increases 

occurred in Harassment (35.2%), Common Assault 

(31.9%) and Assault with Injury (21.8%) offences.  

Figure 12.4: The percentage change in VAP offences across 

London. Blue bars represent LBHF’s MSF local authorities. 

The amount of offences vary throughout the year with long term monthly trends suggesting there are peaks in offences 

occurring in the summer months when the weather is warmer. The months from May to August all have a greater 

number of offences when compared to the yearly average (4%, 8%, 8% and 3% difference respectively).  In 2014-15 there 

was a bigger spike in Violence Against a Person offences in March than occurred in previous financial years. 

Figure 12.1: Long term trend for Violence Against a Person offences 

Figure 12.3: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars represent five 

year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 12.2: Breakdown of VAP offences 2014-15 

Page 103



 7 

 Common Assault 

 Harassment 

 
Assault with Injury 

Figure 12.6: LBHF seasonal difference from the average. Bars represent five 

year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Common Assault offences have experienced a 31.9% increase since 2013-14 from 1,087 to 1,434 in 2014-15. According 

to long term monthly trends Common Assault offences spike in the summer and between October and December. In 

2014-15 there was a higher number of offences that occurred in March. 

Figure 12.5: Long term trend for Common Assault offences 

Assault with Injury offences have experienced a 21.8% increase since 2013-14 from 909 to 1,107 in 2014-15. According 

to long term monthly trends a higher number of Assault with Injury offences occurred between the period April to 

September . In 2014-15 there was a higher number of offences that occurred in March. 

Figure 12.8: LBHF seasonal difference from the average. Bars represent five 

year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Harassment offences have experienced a 36.0% increase since 2013-14 from 1,331 to 1,810 in 2014-15. According to long 

term monthly trends a higher number of Harassment offences occured between May - August and in March and October. 

In 2014-15 there was a higher number of offences that occurred in October and lower than expected number of offences 

that occurred in July and August. 

Figure 12.10: LBHF seasonal difference from the average. Bars represent 

five year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 12.7: Long term trend for Assault with Injury offences 

Figure 12.9: Long term trend for Harassment offences 

Page 104



 8 

 London Ambulance Service - Assault 

Even though the number of Violence Against a Person offences has increased, the number of assault related ambulance call 

outs has actually decreased from 904 in 2013 to 650 in 2014. This is below the long term average of 1139 assault related 

ambulance call outs per year. 

When comparing to inner and outer London the rate of increase since 2010 has been lower with big percentage decreases 

over the last three years. 

Figure 12.11: The total number of assault related ambulance call outs 
Figure 12.12: The percentage change in the number of assault related ambulance call outs 

since 2002. 

According to long term monthly trends a higher number of alcohol related call outs occurred between the period May -

October. In 2014-15 a higher number of call outs occurred in March and April which corresponds to the increase in 

VAP offences in March 2014/15. 

During the week Friday to Sunday tend to have the most alcohol related call outs while 18:00-20:59 and 21:00-23:59 

receive the highest number of call outs. 

Figure 12.13: ThLBHF seasonal difference from the average. Bars represent five year 

trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 
Figure 12.14: Temporal Analysis - Assault related ambulance call outs 

Page 105



 9 

M
a
p

 1
 :
 T

h
e
 s

p
at

ia
l 
d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 o

f 
as

sa
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
d
 a

m
b
u
la

n
ce

 c
al

l 
o
u
ts

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e
 L

B
H

F
 a

t 
o
u
tp

u
t 

ar
e
a.

 

 Domestic Violence 

The number of domestic violence offences has increased by 16.9% from 1,169 in 2013-14 to 1,367 in 2014-15. This is 

the 22nd highest increase across London. This increase may have caused by more reporting of domestic violence 

offences. 

Figure 12.15: Long term trend for Domestic Violence offences 
Figure 12.16 : Percentage change across London 2014-15. Highlighted 

local authorities are in LBHFs MSF 

Page 106



 10 

According to monthly long term trends a higher number of domestic offences occur in the summer months between 

May and August. In 2014-15 a higher number of offences occurred in September compared to previous financial years. 

Shepherd’s Bush Green and Wormholt and White City have the higher rate of domestic violence offences in the 

Borough (11.17 and 10.23 offences per 1,000 population respectively). The biggest increases in the Borough occurred 

in Wormholt and White City and Sands End wards which experienced increases of 47 and 37 respectively. 

Figure 12.17: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars represent five 

year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 12.18: Ward Level Domestic Violence offences 2014-15 

Recommendation 

An in depth analytical report to be produced on Violent Crime in LBHF including Domestic Violence. This report 

would cover spatial and temporal analysis plus analysis on perpetrators and victims. This will help inform tasking 

changes and any preventative measures that could be taken to reduce the number of offences. 

Page 107



 11 

Priority 3:  Motor Vehicle Crime 
The number of Theft and Handling offences has increased 

by 3.6% from 8,955 in 2013/14 to 9,277 in 2014/15. This is 

the second highest increase across London since 2013/14. 

When broken down into more specific categories Motor 

Vehicle Crime has increased by 376 offences since 

2013/14. Other theft offences has also increased by 9 % 

from 3,063 in 2013-14 to 3,346 in 2014-15. These 

increases have been offset by decreases in Theft Taking of 

Pedal Cycle (-179) and Theft Person (-137). 

 Motor Vehicle Crime 

Motor Vehicle offences has increased by 16.3% from 2,312 in  

2013-14 to 2,688 in 2014-15.  

Currently LBHF have some of the worst rates of Motor 

Vehicle Crime across London (Theft from a MV – 32th worst, 

Motor Vehicle Interference - 29th worst and Theft of MV - 

24th worst). 

Both Theft from a Motor Vehicle and Motor Vehicle 

Interference have experienced some of the biggest increases 

over the last year in London. Taking from a Motor Vehicle has 

increased by 8.9%, the highest increase in London while Motor 

Vehicle Interference has increase by 159%, the 6th highest 

increase in London. 

The number of Theft and Handling offences varies throughout the year with long term monthly trends suggesting there 

are spikes in the number of offences in the period leading up to the Christmas with October and November having the 

biggest percentage differences when compared to the monthly average. 

Figure 13.4: Long term trend for Motor Vehicle Crime offences 

Figure 13.1: Breakdown of Theft and Handling Offences 2014-15 

Figure 13.3: Percentage change across London 2014-15. Highlighted local 

authorities are in LBHFs MSF 
Figure 13.2: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars represent five 

year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Page 108



 12 

The number of Motor Vehicle Crime offences varies throughout the year with long term monthly trends suggesting 

there are spikes in the number of offences in the period between April - June  and in October and November. 

 

Figure 13.9: Theft from a MV LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars 

represent five year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 13.10: MV Interference & Tampering LBHF seasonal difference from the 

Average. Bars represent five year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 13.8: Theft Taking of MV LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. 

Bars represent five year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 13.7: MV Crime LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars 

represent five year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 13.5: MV Interference & Tampering. Percentage change across 

London 2014-15. Highlighted local authorities are in LBHFs MSF 

Figure 13.6: Taking from a Motor Vehicle Percentage change across London 

2014-15. Highlighted local authorities are in LBHFs MSF 

Recommendation 

An in depth analytical report to be produced on Motor Vehicle Crime in LBHF. This report would cover spatial and 

temporal analysis plus analysis on perpetrators and victims. This will help inform tasking changes and any preventative 

measures to reduce offences 

Page 109



 13 

Priority 4: Anti Social Behaviour 
 Overview 

Anti Social Behaviour remains a key priority for residents in LBHF and is a high volume offence. ASB incidents are 

recorded on a number of different systems across the Police and Council. Together these data sources give a rich picture 

of Anti Social Behaviour within the Borough. 

 Police ASB Incidents 

The number of ASB incidents recorded by the Police has 

fallen by 15% from 6,804 in 2013-14 to 5,786 in 2014-15. 

There has be a similar decrease (20.2%) in the number of ASB 

incidents recorded on ReACT from 721 in 2013-14 to 575 in 

2014-15. Noise nuisance incidents recorded on uniform  have 

remained stabled with a small increase of 2.7% from 7,224 

incidents in 2013-14 to 7,419 in 2014-15.  

The number of ASB incidents recorded by the Police has fallen by 15% from 6,804 in 2013-14 to 5,786 in 2014-15. The 

number of ASB incidents varies with long term monthly trends suggesting spikes in ASB incidents in the summer 

months. June and July are the months with the highest amount of ASB incidents. 

Figure 16.1 :Anti Social Behaviour Overview 

Figure 16.3: Long term trend - Police ASB incidents Figure 16.2: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars represent four year trend 

while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

 Noise - Uniform 

In 2014-15 there were a total of 7,419 noise incidents recorded 

on Uniform. This represents a 2.7% increase in number of 

incidents compared with 2013-14. Generally the level of 

incidents has remained fairly stable over the last 8 years. 

Domestic noise incidents still make up a large proportion of 

noise complaints (47%) and have decreased by 16.6% since 2013-

14. Building noise makes up the 2nd highest proportion of noise 

complaints and has increased by 68% since 2013-14. Complaints  

classed as noise in the street and noisy party have both increased 

since 2013-14 by 67.5% and 45.1% respectively. 

Figure 16.4: Noise complaints Long Term Trend 

Page 110



 14 

The highest number of noise complaints occurred over the weekend and on Mondays with all three days experiencing 

a higher number of incidents than the average. According to long term monthly trends a higher amount of complaints 

are made between the period June to October. 

 ReACT 

The total number of ASB incidents recorded on ReACT has been falling year on year since 2010/11. Between 2013-14 

and 2014-15 total incidents reduced by 146, or 20%. 

ReACT measures the seriousness of incidents, with Grade 1 being the most serious. Over the last four years covered 

by the data, the proportions of incidents in each grade have stayed relatively static. In 2014-15 there was a slightly 

higher proportion of Grade 1 incidents at 12%. 

Figure 16.9: The total number of incidents recorded on ReACT by Financial Year and grade. 

Figure 16.10: The total number of incidents recorded on ReACT by Financial Year 

Figure 16.8: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars represent three year 

trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 16.5: Noise Complaints breakdown Figure 16.6: Noise Complaints breakdown 

Figure 16.7: Long Term Trend - Noise Complaints 

The majority of outcomes have been recorded as ‘other action taken by landlord’. In 2010-11 it was the outcome 

in 70% of cases, in 2011-12 it was the outcome in 76% of cases, and in 2012-13 it was 88%. As cases are still active, 

in the financial year 2014-15 there are still a number of outcomes to be completed. Of the closed cases in 2014-15 

‘other action taken by landlord ‘ made up 89% of outcomes. 

Page 111



 15 

The most common incident reported on ReACT were noise incidents. These made up 23% of incidents in 2014-15. 

and between 2013-14 and 2014-15 noise incidents reduced by 27.9% from 183 in 2013-14 to 132 in 2014-15 . 

Verbal abuse incidents (which made up 15% of all incidents in 2013-14) reduced by 6.3% since 2013-14.  

Figure: 16.11 The total number of incidents recorded on ReACT by financial year and inci-

dent type 

Figure: 16.12: Outcomes by year 

Figure 16.14: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars represent three 

year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

According to long term monthly trends a higher number of ReACT incidents occurred in the Summer months between 

April and October. A lower amount of incidents occurred over the Winter months. 

Table 15.13 shows the 2014-15 ReACT incidents by electoral ward.  Palace Riverside and Town Wards have the highest 

rate of incidents per 1,000 population (6.5 and 5.1 respectively).  Wormholt & White City and Fulham Reach Wards have 

the highest number of incidents (113 and 60 respectively). 

Figure 16.13: The total number of incidents recorded on ReACT 

2014-15 by Ward 

Page 112



 16 

The total number of incidents recorded on the Wardens database has decreased by 4.9% from 4,713 incidents in 2013-

14 to 4,481 incidents in 2014-15. A number of incident types have decreased since 2013-14 with the biggest decreases 

occurring in Congregating Youths (-380) and Littering General (-106). The categories with the highest amount of 

incidents in 2014-15 were Congregating Youths (375), Littering General (235) and Alcohol (111). 

According to long term monthly trends there is a higher number of incidents that occur during the period between 

June and November with July and September having the greatest amount of incidents. In 2014-15 there was a higher 

number of incidents that occurred in April and May. On Tuesday and Thursday the highest number of incidents 

occurred (767 and 683 respectively). 

Figure 16.16: The total number of incidents recorded on the Wardens database 

by financial year. 

Figure 16.15: Wardens Overview 

Figure 16.17: Total number of incidents by day 

Figure 16.18: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars represent five year 

trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

 Wardens 

Page 113



 17 

Below is a hot spot map that displays the locations of incidents recorded on the Wardens database. 

The highest number of incidents occurred between 15:00 -17:59 and 18:00 - 20:59 (1,264 and 1,498 incidents 

respectively). In terms of actions from the recorded incidents, the majority of incidents lead to a incident report being 

sent to H&F Homes (89.4%). 3.9% of incidents led to a FPN being issued for littering and 1% of incidents resulted in the 

Police being contacted. 

Figure 16.18: Wardens database– action taken Figure 16.17: Total number of incidents by time period 

Page 114



 18 

The total number of incidents recorded on the Park Police 

database has increased by 34.7% from 793 in 2013-14 to 1,068 

in 2014-15. 14% of incidents in 2014-15 were homeless related, 

11.1% were Breach of Byelaw related and 10% were related to 

Control Drinking Zones. 

Homeless incidents increased by 53% since 2013-14, Breach of 

Byelaw incidents increased by 43% while Control Drinking Zone 

incidents decreased by 15.7%. 

In 2014-15 the highest number of incidents occurred in Bishops 

Park (15.2%), Ravenscourt Park (14.0%) and Wormwood Scrubs 

(9.6%). The number of incidents in Bishops Park and 

Ravenscourt Park increased by 50% and 31% respectively since 

2013-14. A large increase of incidents occurred in Normand 

Park from 15 in 2013-14 to 69 in 2014-15. 

According to long term monthly trends the highest number of incidents occur over the summer months between 

April to October with May and July experiencing the largest number of incidents. 

Figure 16.20: Top 20 locations Parks Police Incidents 2014-15 

Figure 16.19: The total number of Park Police Incidents 

Figure 16.21: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars represent 2 year 

trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

 Parks Police 

Page 115



 19 

The total number of incidents recorded by CCTV cameras 

in LBHF has increased by 40.6%  from 5,317 in 2013-14 to 

7,473 in 2014-15. Over the same time period the arrests 

have also increased by 17.5% from 1,129 in 2013-14 to 

1,327 in 2014-15.  

The number of violent, shoplifter and drugs incidents 

recorded by CCTV cameras has increased since 2013-14 

(162, 151, 81 incidents respectively). Robbery and Criminal 

Damage incidents captured by CCTV cameras have 

decreased over the same period (-7 and -10 incidents 

respectively). 

In terms of anti-social behaviour incidents captured by 

CCTV cameras, all categories have increased since 2013-14 

with the biggest increases occurring in anti social behaviour  

and abusive behaviour incidents. Anti-social behaviour 

incidents captured by CCTV have increased by 47.2% from 

217 in 2013-14 to 404 in 2014-15. 

In terms of arrests, the biggest category was incidents were 

an arrest was seen which made up 16.9% of arrest. The 

biggest categories after this were Shoplifter (10.5% of 

arrests), Assault (7.6% of arrests) and Fighting (6.2% of 

arrests). 

According to long term monthly trends a higher number of incidents are captured by CCTV in between July and October 

with July having the largest amount of incidents. Incidents are recorded throughout the day with the period between 12 

noon and 3am experiencing the highest number of incidents with a 15:00-17:59 having the most incidents recorded. 

Figure 17.1: Number of incidents captured by CCTV cameras 

Figure 17.2: CCTV incidents broken down by category type 

Figure 17.3: CCTV incidents broken down by ASB category 

Figure 17.5: CCTV incidents broken down by time period 
Figure 17.4: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars represent 3 year 

trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

 CCTV 

Page 116



 20 

The graph below shows the number of incidents recorded by CCTV cameras split by day and time. The highest 

peak during the week occurs between 15:00 - 17:59 while at the weekend the highest number of incidents occur 

between 18:00 - 20:59. 

The map at the bottom of the page shows the locations of CCTV cameras in the Borough. If changes are made to 

the system export it will be possible to link incidents to locations of cameras, allowing spatial analysis of captured 

CCTV incidents to be undertaken. 

Figure 17.6: CCTV arrests Figure 17.7: Number CCTV incidents broken down by day and time 

M
a
p

 1
7
.8

: 
C

C
T

V
 c

am
e
ra

 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
s 

Page 117



 21 

Priority 5: Victims 

 

Figure 4.4 shows the nature of offences broken down by the three Tri-Borough areas. 46% of Tri-Borough victims are a 

victim of theft and handling offences, which is the highest volume offence for all three separate boroughs. 

LBHF has a higher percentage of victims recorded as ‘other accepted crime’ when compared against the other two Tri-

Borough areas. 93% of this crime type are domestic violence related. 

Overall, females have a slightly higher rate of victimisation than male residents (79.7 compared to 78.4 per 1000), but 

males have a higher rate between the ages of 11 and 17 and from the age 38 to 70. Females have the highest between 

18 and 31 years. 

As a proportion of crimes experienced by vulnerable residents compared to all resident victims, vulnerable people are 

more likely to be a victim of violence, other accepted crime, criminal damage and sexual offences. However, they are 

less likely to be a victim of theft and handling offences, burglary and robbery. 

 Overview 

The Tri-Borough Victim Needs Assessment (VNA) project was commissioned by the Tri-Borough Area Community 

Safety Commissioning Group. The VNA was developed to assist the Tri-Borough area in developing a local 

understanding of the area’s most vulnerable victims - those who are disabled, young, or repeat victims of crime. 

 

Figure 4.3 shows the distribution of all home wards of all Tri-Borough victims. The average ward rate is 283.4 victims 

per 1,000 residents. Residents victims in LBHF are relatively evenly distributed across all wards, but with slight clusters 

north of Goldhawk Road / Shepherd’s Bush Green, and Sands End Ward. 

The consequences of crime can have a major impact on victims and communities within the Borough. Having fewer victims 

in the Borough is obviously a key outcome but it is equally important to ensure care and support is given to those who 

suffer crime and anti-social behaviour. The current  LBHF’s Corporate Plan sets out clearly an objective “to improve the 

ease with which victims can report crime or anti-social behaviour  and their experience when they do so”.  Additionally, a 

revised ‘Victims Code of Practice’ was published in October 2013. The Code gives victims a legal right to receive a 

minimum standard of service from the criminal justice system. This includes assessment of need, information about victims’ 

services and appropriate referral. Support is to be focused on victims of serious crime, those that are persistently targeted 

and those that are vulnerable and intimidated, and tailored according to their need. 

As well as It is also important to reduce the risk of becoming a victim  in the Borough especially in terms of vulnerability.  

Preventative measures targeted at the population most at risk of becoming a victim of a certain crime can reduce the 

amount of crime taking place. Emerging key priority areas are children at risk of sexual exploitation and violence against 

women and girls. 

Figure 18.1: Distribution of home wards of victims Figure 18.2: Victims in the tri-borough area broken down by offence 

Page 118



 22 

 Flytipping 

The total number of fly tipping incidents has increased by 36% from 1,531 in 2013-14 to 2,085 in 2014-15. According to 

long term monthly trends March and October experience the highest number of fly tipping incidents. 

 
Graffiti 

Priority 6: Environmental Crime 

The total number of graffiti incidents has increased by 17.6% from 1,264 in 2013-14 to 1,486 in 2014-15. According to 

long term monthly trends May and November experience the highest number of graffiti incidents. 

 Fly Posting 

The total number of fly posting incidents has decreased by 11% from 2,478 in 2013-14 to 2,205 in 2014-15. According to 

long term monthly trends February, April, October, November experience a higher number of fly posting incidents. 

Figure 19.2: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars 

represent 5 year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 19.4: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars 

represent 5 year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 19.6: LBHF seasonal difference from the Average. Bars 

represent 5 year trend while the line represents 2014-15 trend. 

Figure 19.1: Long term trends - flytipping. 

Figure 19.3: Long term trends - graffiti. 

Figure 19.5: Long term trends - flyposting 

Page 119



 23 

 Other Environmental Crime 

The table below contains information on other types of incidents that are recorded in Confirm.  All these types of 

incidents have decreased since 2010-11 with the biggest percentage decreased occurring in Skips/Building Material and 

Receptacles incidents (92.9% and 81.1% respectively). In 2014-15 Obstruction had the highest volume of incidents 

followed by Receptacles (970 and 325 respectively).  

Recommendation 

Fly tipping should be a priority for the partnership. The partnership to explore whether predictive mapping can be 

used to target interventions at locations that are most at risk of fly tipping. 

 Spatial Analysis 

Figure 19.7: Other Environmental Crime 

The following maps contain spatial information on fly tipping in the Borough. The map below shows hot spots for fly tipping 

incidents in 2014/15. 

-1
5
 

Page 120



 24 

Part 6: Problem Locations 

Number of Incidents 

Since 2006/07 5% of 

properties recorded on 

Uniform made up 36% of 

all noise incidents. This 

represents just 0.9% of 

properties within the 

Borough. 

Research shows that Crime is more likely to occur at some places than others. One common aim of Crime and ASB 

mapping is, therefore, to identify where ‘hotspots’ occur.  By using addresses, repeat causes of ASB incidents such as noise 

complaints can be identified which can then be used to inform tasking and preventative measures. 

Uniform holds noise complaints incidents since 2006/07 so repeat addresses can be analysed throughout the historical 

cohort. Since 2005/06 5% of properties (1,922) recorded on Uniform make up 36% of all noise incidents (23,160).10% of 

properties (3,844) make up 50% of all noise incidents (31,564). Please not that this may not be the same individuals causing 

a noise complaints but it is occurring at the same address. 

Number of Properties on 

Uniform 

10% 

5% 

50% 

36% 

20% 

50% 

64% 

85% 

Mapping the 5% of addresses that generate 36% of noise incidents since 

2006/07 generates a clustered pattern meaning that these locations are 

clustered within the Borough. 

By combining more datasets together there is potential that key 

locations and addresses can be identified which are responsible for 

generating a large proportion of Crime and ASB incidents within the 

Borough. 

 Noise Nuisance - Repeat Households 

Since 2006/07 10% of 

properties recorded on 

Uniform made up 50% of all 

noise incidents. This represents 

just 1.7% of properties within 

the Borough. 

Figure 22.2: All Noise Incidents since 2006/07.  

Number of Properties 

in the Borough 

Figure 22.1: All Noise Incidents since 2006/07. Blue Triangle represents all noise incidents since 2006/07 while  green triangle represents all properties 

involved in a noise incident. The purple triangle represents the proportion of properties involved in noise incident across the Borough. Triangles are not 

proportional.  

0.9% 

1.7% 

3.5% 

8.7% 

Page 121



 25 

 Problem Streets - ASB Incidents 

According to crime pattern theory, the distribution of crime largely depends on how victims and offenders converge in 

space. In an urban environment an individual’s activity is defined by street and transport networks called ‘paths’ along 

which they travel to ‘nodes’ where they live, work, or engage in leisure activities. Crime tends to concentrate at the 

nodes and along the paths that connect them. This means that streets and transport networks strongly influence the 

spatial distribution of crime and ASB incidents. 

Different systems collect different ASB incidents at varying spatial levels which makes it difficult to combine datasets to 

carry out analysis. One common thread throughout the systems are streets with all incidents being able to be allocated 

to a street or the nearest street.  This then creates the opportunity to analysis ASB as a whole and to identify 

‘problem’ streets that have a high rate of ASB incidents. 

The following section sets out a methodology to identify the problem streets in the Borough in terms of ASB to help 

inform new ways of working and preventative measures. Incidents of ASB have been compared from different data 

sources and aggregated together at street level.  

The first map shows streets with the highest number of ASB incidents that occurred in 2014-15 and highlights main 

roads within the Borough. The second map contains information on the ratio of ASB incidents on each street. The 

ratio is calculated by dividing the proportion of ASB incidents that occur on a street by the proportion of properties on 

the same street. A value above 1 represents a higher than expected level of ASB incidents. This map also highlights 

main roads but also other small pockets of streets where there is a high ratio of ASB incidents. 

 Problem Streets 

Map showing the streets with the highest number of ASB incidents  

Page 122



 26 

Map showing the streets with a high ratio of ASB incidents 

Recommendation 

A separate report to be commissioned by the Partnership that looks at the spatial and temporal variation for Problem 

Streets and locations in the Borough for both Crime and ASB incidents. This report could then lead to changes in 

resource allocation and focussing joined up approaches to Problem Streets. 

Page 123



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2015-16 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Item Report Author(s) Comments 

18 January 2016 – BUDGET 
 
 

Report deadline: 24 December 

Draft Budget 

Senior Officers to discuss the major areas of challenge for their services. 
Highlight areas for scrutiny. To review the 2016/17 budget for relevant 
departments. (Last report: Jan 2015) 

Mark Jones / Senior 
Officers 

 

2 March 2016 - TBC 
 
 

Report deadline: 11 February 

Policing / Community Safety  
 

Residents Services 

Innovative solutions / use of social media etc. How would you like to do 
reporting etc? 

 
 

12 April 2016 - PLANNING 
 
 

Report deadline: 21 March 

Environmental Planning Requirements 

How is the Council ensuring maximum value for residents from large-scale 
developments in the borough? How is the impact on the environment being 
mitigated? 

 
 

Planning Annual Monitoring Report 

To review the annual report on progress against the Local Plan priorities 
and objectives. (Last report 14 April 2015) 

 

 

 

 

Juliemma McLoughlin 
 

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 9



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2015-16 

Page 2 of 4 
 

28 June 2016 - TBC 
 
 

Report deadline: 13 June 

Environmental Health Annual Report 2015-16 and Noise 
Nuisance Prevention 

Annie Rammage 
 

Strategic Assessment for Crime and ASB 

 

 

Claire Rai/Duncan 
Smith 

 

 
  

P
age 125



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2015-16 

Page 3 of 4 
 

CSERS PAC REMIT:- 

 Transport, including roads maintenance, other transport infrastructure 

 Parking policy, traffic management and the relationship with TfL 

 Planning policy and performance and the impact of developments on transport infrastructure and the environment 

 The local environment  

 Street Scene 

 Parks and open spaces 

 Recycling and environmental sustainability 

 Waste disposal, street cleansing, refuse collection  

 Cemeteries 

 Biodiversity 

 Quality of life 

 Community safety 

 Tackling anti-social behaviour 

 Licensing and gambling 

 Neighbourhood governance 
 
 
Public Suggestions 
 
1. Environmental requirements for new buildings (commercial and residential) – ensuring solar panels are installed and grey-
water* plumbing is fitted. Also for new gyms - power-generating equipment could be built into exercise machines. 
 
*Grey-water is all wastewater from households or office buildings except for the wastewater from toilets (e.g. water from sinks, 
showers, dishwashers). As grey-water contains many fewer pathogens than domestic wastewater, it is easier to treat and to recycle 
onsite for uses such as toilet flushing, landscape irrigation or even irrigation of crops. Application of grey-water reuse in urban water 
systems provides a substantial benefit for both water supply and wastewater subsystems by reducing the need for clean water in 
water distribution system as well as generated wastewater in sewer system. 
  

P
age 126



Community Safety, Environment & Residents Services PAC – Work Programme 2015-16 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Other Suggestions 
 
1. Waste Strategy - Update report 
 
2. Cemeteries in the borough - issues, challenges and priorities for the service.  
 
 
Annual Items 
 

1. Planning Annual Monitoring Report 

(Juliemma McLoughlin) To review the annual report on progress against the Local Plan priorities and objectives. (Last report 14 
April 2015) 
 
2. Regulation Of Investigatory Powers Act Annual Report  (contact: Janette Mullins) The use of RIPA legislation in the tri-
borough. (Last report 14 April 2015) 
 
3. Annual Report to TfL (Mahmood Siddiqi) Annual report to TfL detailing spending on transport projects. (Last report Sept 2014) 
 
4. Performance Monitoring (Lee Fitzjohn) To receive and monitor departmental performance against an agreed set of indicators. 

P
age 127


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Boroughwide 20MPH Speed Limit - Consultation Results
	6 Cycling Update
	7 Revised Statement of Licensing Policy
	SLP post consultation 2015 PAC version

	8 Community Safety Strategic Assessment 2015-16
	Strategic Assessment 2015-16 Priorities

	9 Dates of Future meetings and Work Programming

